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CHAIRPERSON'S LETTER

Without u doubt 2009 waus un extremely disuppointing year with Recluim
Industries Limited yeneruting un operuting loss for the yeaur of $2.2million on
sules revenue of $12.9million. Deteriorution of our key soft-full surfuce luyiny
market led this decline.

Howeverthe yeur has hot been without its positives. The manugementteam hus
overseen the upyrude of the WA production fucility und similar improvements
to the SA site. Whilst the implementation of these cupital upyrades took u
little longer thun expected due to the deterioruting cushflow of the business,
the resultunt reduction in the cost per tonne of 30% to dute, with further
improvements expected, how provides the compuny with u competitive cost
of production. The full effects of these initiutives will hot be evident until the
2010 finunciul year. On unother positive hote our tyre collections business hus
growh by 20%.

The restructure of the senior munugement teum during the yeur resulted in
the recruitment of Scott Morgun us Chief Financiul Officer und Paul Derhum
us National Sales Munager, bringing dan increused range of expertise to the
business. They in addition with John Crosby us Manhaying Director have led
the teum of dedicuted und loydl stuff through the period of cupitul upyrades
and continuul improvement of operutionul processes. Despite the finunciul
pressures, we have munuyed to muintuin our stuffing level und believe that
we have the most competent feum in this industry. | would like to thunk fellow
bourd members Neil MacKenzie and John Crosby for their support and input
throughout the yedr und recoynize the conftribution maude by the other
directors who served during the year, hamely Libby Lyohs, Chris Forrester and
Mutthew Bickford-Smith.

The bourd remuins committed to the growth struteyy of the business in order
to provide u return to our putient shareholders. We dppreciute the support
und putience of shureholders during this difficult period for the compuny.

The compuny hus shown its ubility to withstand the turbulent conditions over
the lust 12 months, during which some of our competitors huve yone out of
business. As u result the compuny is in a stronger position to tuke audvuntuye
of the opportunities that exist for our industry us a whole. We believe there will
be further consolidution of the industry in the short term and believe Recluim
is well pluced to be u key pluyer in this uctivity. The 2010 yeur hus sturted
onh u positive note und the bourd is yuietly confident this is u pattern that will
contfinue throughout the yeur.

Jennifer King - Chairperson

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

Your directors present their report on Recluim Industries Limited (“the Compuny”) und its controlled entities for the
financiul yeur ended 30 June 2009.

DIRECTORS

The humes of the directors in office und at uny time duriny, or since the end of the yeur are:
. Ms Jennifer King

. Mr John Crosby

. Mr Christopher Forrester (resigned 25 November 2008)

. Ms Elizabeth Lyons (resigned 29 October 2008)

. Mr Neil Mackenzie

. Mr Matthew Bickford-Smith (appointed 15 December 2008, resigned 28 April 2009)

Directors have been in office since the start of the finunciul yeur to the dute of this report unless otherwise stuted.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The followiny person held the position of Compuny Secretury ut the end of the finunciul yeur:
Mr Philip Warren (resigned 8/10/2008)
Mr Scott Morgan (appointed 8/10/2008)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The consoliduted entities principal activities in the finuncial yeur were rubber recycling und munufacturing fo convert
used rubber tyres into commerciully uttractive surfacing, moulded und grunule products for u wide ranye of industries
in both domestic und international markets.

No significunt change in the nuture of these uctivities occurred during the finuncial year,

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Earnings Result

The result for the finuncial year ended 30 June 2009 wus d loss of $2,213,287 compured with last year’s loss of $717,372.
The 2009 figure includes the following hon-trading fransactions:
. Loss on disposal of fixed assets $202,533.

. $197,322 in consulting and legal costs related to due diligence for an acquisition which did not eventuate.

It is ulso noted thut the upyrude of the SA plunt wus funded by u grunt under the IIFSA progrum totulling $472,000
(us ut 30 June 2009 $412,771 hud been received), which is not reflected in the ubove result due to the required
freatment of these monies under Australiun Accounting Stundurds, but is u substuntial reuson why the Compuny hus
been duble to continue its development program ut a fime of significunt tradiny losses. The net book vulue of plunt
and equipment has increused from $1.52 million to $2.75 million representing g major upgrade of what was an under-
resourced dreu, holding buck production und productivity.

Totul sules revenue decreused from $15.8 million to $13.0 million resulting primarily from u 34% ($4.3 million) drumutic
decline in the level of revenue from the surfacing division. This wus due to the yenerul deterioration of conditions in
the economy and the cessution of government funding for schools for most of the year. The BER scheme for schools
fundinyg cuused u greut deul of uctivity but did hot produce uny work unfil late June. However this decline in revenue
wus purtidlly offset by the increuse in sules revenue from the Collections business which rose by 20%.

Much of the yeur wus spent focussing on reducing the operuting costs of Group’s maunufucturing operations. The
replucement of uying muchinery in Western Australia hus redlised significant improvements in efficiency and therefore
the business hus gladly withessed u sizeuble reduction in munufacturing costs. The Group reulised u 30% reduction
in the cost of production in the first two months of operation of the new plunt before the end of the finunciul year.
Once the implementation is complete the Group expects reduction in the cost of production from this facility in the
vicinity of 60%. The installation of u similur facility in South Australia will produce similar results once fully operationul.
Commissioning of the facility in South Australia occurred during August 2009.

Effective 1 March 2009 the Group increused its SA-bused tyre collection ussets with the purchuse of the Budyget Tyres
business in order to strenythen the continuity of our supply line and extend the vertical business process. There wus u
positive contribution to the result from this usset ucqyuisition.

During the year 17,120,557 million shares were issued at 6.5 cents per share fo raise $1,112,836. The funds were used
for working capital and to continue the above capital eyuipment upyrades und process improvements.
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Future Growth

.

The Group is continuing to develop u strony yrowth strateyy with its unique focus us the only listed compuny exclusively
focussed on rubber recycling. Whilst the Group’s performunce hus been severely humpered by the economic
downturn, muny of our competitors have ceused frading. This hus presented us with humerous opportunities which
will enable the Group to grow us well as give us a lurger nhational presence in dll aspects of the tyre recycling sector.
The bourd und sehior munuygement teum are committed o reviewiny ull these opportunities so that the Group cun
ygrow and maximise shareholder’s wedlth.

In the pust the Group hus not been cupduble of producing sufficient levels of rubber products to satisfy its own needs.
With the increused cupucity of the West Australion production facility and expected future production from the
South Australiun plant this will provide materiul in excess of internal requirements ut u competitive cost und therefore
neyotiations huve commenced with potential customers for the supply of grunulated rubber for use in u humber of
murkets. The Group hus dlready hud a humber of wins in this bulk market both locally und overseus. This is reduciny
the reliunce on the soft-full surfucing market which has hurt the performunce of the business in the previous yeur und
will leave the Compuny with a much more robust and diversified business model.

The compuny hus started the 2010 financial year very strongly with a year to date EBIT $153,354 to the end of August.
This is the result of the business redlising the finuncial benefits of the cost reductions strategy und the development of
new markets.

CHANGE IN STATE OF AFFAIRS

No signhificunt chunges in the economic entities” state of uffuirs occurred during the finunciul yeaur.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Other thun us mentioned below or in the finunciul statements of the notes thereto, there have not been uny mutters

or circumstances occurring subsequent to the end of the finuncial year that hus significantly affected, or may

sighificuntly affect, the operdations of the consoliduted entity, the results of those operdations, or the stute of uffairs of
the consoliduted entity in future finuncial years.

o On 28 September 2009 the Company signed an agreement to acquire the inventory and the majority of the plant and
equipment associated with the former Renaza tyre processing facility in New South Wales for a purchase price of $621,000.
The Company will also enter into a 3 year lease agreement on the premises where the equipment is currently located
in Fairfield NSW.

This tfransaction will result in the Company securing a high quality car tyre processing facility on the east coast capable
of producing 2,400 tonnes of rubber per annum. The site will also be able to produce coloured rubber product.

This will make the Company the only Australian company with the capacity to produce crumbed rubber in three states
and coloured rubber in two states within Australia.

The Company expects to commence operation from the Fairfield site in early October 2009.

o During August 2009 the Company has successfully negotiated an additional finance facility which is yet to be drawn
down. The facility is a tfrade debtors factoring facility which enables the Company to drawdown up to 80% of the frade
debtors up to an additional amount of $400,000. The debtor factoring facility is initially for a twelve month period and
then continues until either party gives notice (3 months) to terminate the facility.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Disclosure of information regurding likely developments in the operations of the Group in future finuncial years has
been mude under the Review of Operutions section of this report.

SHARE OPTIONS

During und since the end of the financidal year, ho options to acyuire ordinary shares in the Company were granted
under the Compuny’s employee share option plan. No options lapsed during the year.

The followiny tuble sets out detuils of options us ut the dute of this report:

Number of shares Exercise price of Expiry date of

Issuing entity under option Class of shares option options

Recluim Industries Limited 1,500,000 Ordinary 0.20 30/06/2010
Recluim Industries Limited 810,000 Ordinary 0.30 30/06/2011
Recluim Industries Limited 420,000 Ordinury 0.40 30/06/2011

There were no shares or interests issued during or since the end of the financial year.

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES

The consoliduted entities” operdtions are regulated in WA and SA by the respective Stute Environmental Protection Acts.

DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED

The directors recommend that no dividend be puid for the yeur ended 30 June 2009, hor have uny umounts been
puid or declured by wuy of dividend since the end of the previous finunciul yeur,

INFORMATION ON CURRENT DIRECTORS

Ms Jennifer King

Experience

Interest in Shures
aund Options

Directorships held in
other listed entities

Mr John Crosby

Experience

Interest in Shares
and Options

Directorships held in
other listed entities

Mr Neil Mackenzie

Experience

Interest in Shures
und Options

Directorships held in
other listed entities

Chuirperson - Appointed 22 Junuury 2008

Ms King holds u Bachelor of Business und hus over 10 yeurs’ experience in
accounting, tuxation, administration and compuny secreturiul work. She contraucts
her services to u publicly listed mining compuny und is ulso u director of severul
private compuanies, including her own consulting business. Ms King assumed the role
of Chuirperson on 25 Februaury 2008.

Ms King both directly and indirectly holds 24,796,214 shures.
Nil Options

During the pust three years Ms King hus not served us u Director for other listed
compunies.

Managinyg Director - Appointed 11 April 2008

Mr Crosby has over three yeurs’ experience in the tyre recycling sector and comes
with extensive ugribusiness und government experience. He wus responsible for the
reflout of Elders in 1993 und becume u director of Elders Australia Limited before
becominy u yenerul munuyer ut Elders ufter the Futuris fukeover.

Mr Crosby both directly und indirectly holds 14,048,808 shares in the Company.
Nil Options

During the pust three yeurs Mr Crosby hus not served as u Director for other listed
compunies.

Non - Executive Director (uppointed 11 April 2008)

Mr Neil Muckenzie is u gudlified chartered uccountunt with over 14 yeurs experience
in the public compuny sector und finuncial murkets. Mr Muckenzie hus previously
served us un executive director of McGuigun Simeon Wines und Cockutoo Ridye
Wines us well us Compuny Secretary of Proto Resources. He currently provides
corporute financiul consulting services to u runge of clients.

Mr Mackenzie holds ho shures or options in the Compuny.

During the pust three yeurs Mr Muckenzie’s directorships in other listed entities were
us Munuying Director of Cockutoo Ridge Wines Limited from1 September 2006 to 27
Agpril 2007.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Scoft Morgun CA wus uppointed Compuny Secretary on 8 October 2008 replacing Mr Philip Warren. Mr Morgan
is u Churtered Accountunt with u Masters of Business Administration with over 13 yeurs experience in the public
compuny sector und uccountiny pructice.

INDEMNIFYING OFFICERS OR AUDITOR

During the finuncial year the Compuny paid insurance premiums in respect to Director’s und Officer’s lidbility insurance.
The insurance policy precludes us from disclosing the umount of coverage. These insurance premiums relate to
insurance of the Directors of the Compuny und its controlled entities humes in the report und former Directors und
Executive Officers of the Compuny and its controlled entities. The policy does hot specify the premium for individual
Directors und Executive Officers.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report
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The Director’s und Officer’s liability insurance provides cover against costs and expehnses involved in defending legal
uctions und uny resulting puyments urising from u liability to persons (other thun the Compuny or u reluted body

corporute) incurred in their position us a Director or Executive Officer unless the conduct involves u wilful breuch of
duty or un improper use of inside informution or position to guin udvuntuye.

. - . . L] .

I

No ligbility has arisen under the indemnity us ut the date of this report.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF COMPANY

No person has applied for leuve of court to bring proceedings on behdlf of the Compuny or infervene in uny
proceedinys to which the Compuny is purty for the purpose of taking responsibility on behulf of the Compuny for dll
or uny purt of these proceedinys.

The Compuny wus hot u purty fo uny such proceedings during the year.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

The directors ure of the opinion that the services us disclosed in hote 7 to the finunciul stutements do hot compromise
the externul auditor’s independence for the followiny reusons:

. all non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and
objectivity of the auditor, and
. none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in Code of Conduct

APES 110 “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board, including reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity
for the Company, acting as advocate for the Company or jointly sharing economic risks and rewards.

DIRECTOR’S MEETINGS

The humber of meetings of the compauny’s Bourd of Directors uttended by euch director during the yeur ended 30
June 2009 wus:

2009 Meetings held while in office Meetings attended
Jenhny Kinyg 12 12

John Crosby 12 12

Neil MucKenzie 12 11
Mutthew Bickford-Smith 5

Chris Forrester 4

Libby Lyons 4

AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

The auditor’s independence declaration is included on puyge 15 of the financidl report.

REMUNERATION REPORT

This report outlines the remunerution arrangements in place for directors und other key munugement personnel of the
Compuny und its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Director and other Key Management Personnel Details
The followiny persons ucted us directors of the Compuny during or since the end of the finunciul yeur:
Ms Jennifer King — Non-Executive Chairperson
Mr John Crosby — Managing Director
Mr Neil Mackenzie — Non-Executive Director
Ms Elizabeth Lyons — Non-Executive Director (resigned 29 October 2008)
Mr Christopher Forrester — Executive Director (resigned 25 November 2008)
Mr Matthew Bickford-Smith — Non- Executive Director (appointed 15 December 2008 and
resigned 28 April 2009)

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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The followiny persons ucted us other key munuygement personnel of the Compuny during or since the end of the
financiul year:

Mr Scott Morgan — Chief Financial Officer (appointed 7 October 2008)

Mr Paul Derham — National Sales Manager (appointed 13 October 2008)

Mr lan Robinson — General Manager SA

Mr Peter Owens — Chief Financial Officer (resigned 1 August 2008)

Mr Richard Timms — National Sales Manager (resigned 28 February 2009)

Relationship between the Remuneration Policy and Company Performance

The tubles below set out summury information ubout the consoliduted entities” eurnings und movements in shareholder
weulth for the five yeurs to June 2009:

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
Revenue 12,993,833 15,820,340 15,169,343 11,439,798 8,426,235
Net profit / (loss) before tux (2,172,516) (693,485) 226,670 28,769 (1,100,645)
Net profit / (loss) ufter tux (2,213.,287) (717.,372) 226,670 28,769 (1,100,645)
30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
i?srir:ee 522? “ibeuinning $0.10 $0.12 $0.08 $0.04 $0.06
Shure price ut end of yeur $0.06 $0.10 $0.12 $0.08 $0.04
Busic eurninys per share (2.75) cents (1.0) cents 0.3 cents 0.001 cents (2.67) cents
Diluted eurnings per share (2.75) cents (1.0) cents 0.3 cents 0.001 cents (2.67) cents

No dividends huve been declured during the five yeurs ended 30 June 2009 und the directors do hot recommend the
payment of u dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2009.

There is no link between the Compuany’s performance and the setfting of remunerution except as discussed below in
relation to options for directors und other key munagement personnel.
Remuneration Philosophy

The performaunce of the Group depends on the yuulity of its directors und other key munagement personnel und
therefore the Group must attract, motivate and retain appropriately yudlified industry personnel. The Group embodies
the following principles in its remuneration framework:

. provide competitive rewards to attract and retain high calibre directors and other key management personnel;
. link executive rewards to shareholder value (by the granting of share options);

. link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the Company; and

. ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

There is currently ho policy or monitoring of key maunugement personnel’s limiting their risk in relution to issued
options.

Remuneration Policy

Due to its size, the Compuny does hot huve u remuneration committee. The compensution of directors is reviewed
by the Bourd with the exclusion of the director concerned. The compensation of other key manugement personnel
is reviewed by the Bourd of Directors.

The Bourd ussesses the uppropriuteness of the nature und umount of remunerution of such persons on u periodic
busis by reference to relevunt employment market conditions with the overdll objective of ehsuring maximum
shareholder benefit from retention of high qudlity directors und other key maunagement personnel. External udvice
onh remunerution Mutters is sought whenever the Bourd deems it necessury.

The remunerution of the directors und other key maunugement personnel is hot dependent on the sutisfuction of
u performunce condition other thun set out in this report. Shure options huve been issued to key munugement
personnel in prior yeurs. These options do hot huve uny performunce conditions. The directors huve decided that the
exclusion of performunce conditions is uppropriaute, ufter considerution of industry practice.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuaul report —
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Non-executive Director Remuneration

The Bourd of Directors seeks to set remuneration of hon-executive directors ut a level which provides the Group’s with
the dability to attruct und retuin directors of the highest culibre, whilst incurring a cost which is uppropriate at this stage
of the Compuny’s development.

The Directors huve resolved that non-executive directors’ fees are $30,000 per unnum for euch hon-executive director
and $30,000 per annum for the non-executive Chairman.

In addition, hon-executive directors dre entitled to be puid reusonuble travelling, uccommodution und other
expenses incurred us u conseyuence of their uttendunce at meetings of directors und otherwise in the execution of
their duties us directors.

Managing Director Remuneration

The Compuny dims to reward the managinyg director with d level and mix of remuneration commensurate with his
position und responsibilities within the Compuny to:

. align the interests of the managing director with those of shareholders;
o link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the Company; and
. ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

Detdils of the Munuyiny Directors employment ugreement ure set out below.

Other Key Management Personnel Remuneration.

The Compuny dims to reward the other key munagement person with d level and mix of remuneration commensurate
with their position und responsibilities within the Compuny to:

. align the interests of the persons with those of shareholders;
. link reward with the strategic goals and performance of the Company; and
. ensure total remuneration is competitive by market standards.

Detuils of the other key munugement personnel employment ugreement ure set out below.

Employment Contracts of Directors and Key Management Personnel
Mr Crosby, Managing Director

Remuneration und other terms of employment for the Maunaging Director, Mr Crosby, are formalised in a workplace

employment ugreement. Mujor provisions of the ugreement relating to remuneration are set out below.

o Base pay of $150,000 plus statutory superannuation.

. Term of Agreement — The Agreement continues until the Company gives 4 weeks written notice of termination or is
otherwise tferminated in accordance with the Employment Agreement.

. Payment of termination of Agreement without cause — one month’s remuneration.

The followiny bonus puyments apply to Mr Crosby’s employment ugreement.
o The bonus payments and targets applicable to Mr Crosby for the 2009 financial year were:

o One off bonus payment of $25,000 if a minimum net profit of $500,000 was achieved for the 2009 financial year
together with a 25% increase in gross revenue from 30 June 2008.

. One off bonus payment of $25,000 if earnings before tax exceeded 5% of gross revenue for the 2009 financial year.

. One off bonus payment of $25,000 if a minimum net profit of $800,000 was achieved for the 2010 financial year

together with a 15% increase in gross revenue from 30 June 2009.

. The bonus payments and targets applicable to Mr Crosby for the 2010 financial year are still o be finalised by the
Board of Directors.

Mr Morgan, Chief Financial Officer (appointed 7 October 2008)

Remunerution und other terms of employment for the Chief Finuncial Officer, Mr Morgun, are formulised in u workpluce

employment ugreement. Mujor provisions of the ugreement reluting to remuneration are set out below.

o Base pay of $150,000 plus statutory superannuation.

. Term of Agreement — The Agreement continues until the Company gives 1 month’s written notice of termination (1
months notice by the Executive) or is otherwise terminated in accordance with the Employment Agreement.

. Payment of termination of Agreement without cause — one month’s remuneration

The followiny bonus puyments apply to Mr Morgun’s employment ugreement.
o One off bonus payment of $25,000 on achieving key performance indicators for the business, yet to be determined.

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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Mr Derham - National Sales Manager (appointed 13 October 2008)

Remuneration and other ferms of employment for the National Sales Manager, Mr Derham, are formalised in G
workplace employment agreement. Major provisions of the agreement relating fo remuneration are set out below.
. Base salary $100,000 plus statutory superannuation.

. Fully maintained motor vehicle.

. Payment on termination of Agreement without cause — one month’s remuneration.

The followiny bonus puyments upply to Mr Derham’s employment ugreement
. Bonus sfructure of 1% of gross surfacing sales above the agreed target figure. The farget figure is $2m less than the
previous year'’s sales.

Mr Robinson - General Manager SA

Remunerution and other ferms of employment for the General Munager SA, Mr Robinson, dre formalised in a workplace
employment ugreement. Mujor provisions of the ugreement relating to remunerution are set out below.
o Base salary $100,000 plus statutory superannuation. This increased on 1 July 2009 from $80,000.

. Payment on termination of Agreement without cause — two week’s remuneration.

Mr Forrester, Executive Director (resigned 25 November 2008)

Remunerution und other ferms of employment for the previous Executive Director, Mr Forrester were formalised in u

consultuncy ugreement. Mujor provisions of the ugreement relating to remunerution are set out below.

o Term of Agreement — The agreement commenced on 1 February 2005 for a term of three years or until either party
gives 3 months written notice of termination or otherwise terminated in accordance with the consultancy agreement.
The Agreement was terminated on 6 August 2008.

. Remuneration nil (2008 $122,453) per annum plus GST payable monthly and reviewed annudally.

o Payment on fermination of Agreement without cause — 3 months fee plus GST, subject to the requirements of ASX
Listing Rule 10.19.

. Director’s fees of $12,500 (2008: $30,000) were also paid to Mr Forrester during the year.

Mr Timms, National Sales Manager (resigned 28 February 2009)

Remunerution und other terms of employment for the previous Nutionul Sules Munhager, Mr Timms, were formulised

in a workpluce employment ugreement. Mujor provisions of the ugreement reluting to remuneration ure set out

below.

. Term of Agreement — The Agreement continues until the Company gives 1 month’s written notice of termination or is
otherwise terminated in accordance with the Employment Agreement.

o Base pay of $150,000 plus statutory superannuation.
. Long term incentives through participation in the Reclaim Employee Share Plan.
. Payment on termination of Agreement without cause — one month’s remuneration.

Mr Owens, Chief Financial Officer (resigned 1 August 2008)

. Term of Agreement — The Agreement commenced on 31 July 2006 and continues until the Company gives 2 weeks
written notice of termination (2 weeks nofice by the Executive) or is otherwise terminated in accordance with the
Employment Agreement.

o Base salary $100,000 per annum plus statutory superannuation.

. Payment of termination of Agreement without cause — one months remuneration.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report —
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Summary of amounts paid to Key Management Personnel
The tuble below discloses the compensution of the key munuyement personnel of the Group during the yeuar.
Percentage
Short-term Post of total
employee o i
2009 be%ezfs employment Subtotql  Snore-based Total remuneration
superannuation payments for the year
Salary & Fees that consists of
options
$ $ $ $ § %
Ms King 25,833 2,324 28,157 - 28,157 -
Mr Crosby 150,000 13,500 163,500 - 163,500 -
Mr Mackenzie 27.300 2,700 30,000 - 30,000 -
Ms Lyons 10,000 900 10,900 - 10,900 -
Mr Morgun 105,192 9.467 114,659 - 114,659 -
Mr Derhum 71,129 6,401 77.530 - 77.530 -
Mr Robinson 80,000 7,200 87.200 - 87.200 -
Mr Bickford-
Smith 10,000 900 10,900 - 10,900 -
Mr Forrester 12,500 - 12,500 (13.820) (i) (1,320) -
Mr Timms 109,062 9.815 118.877 - 118,877 -
Mr Owens 13.461 1,211 14,672 (9,725) () 4,947 -
2009 Totdl 614,477 54,418 668,895 (23.545) 645,350
(i) This relates to shares.
No bohuses were puid to key munuyement personnel during the yeur ended 30 June 2009.
Percentage
Short-term Post of total
employee Ny i
2008 bepne?i/ts employment Sub total SliS oo Total Eineneieion
superannuation payments for the year
Salary & Fees that consists of
options
$ $ $ $ 8 %
Ms King 8,333 - 8,333 - 8,333 -
Mr Crosby 27,000 2,250 29,250 - 29,250 -
Mr Forrester 229,673 - 229,673 99.844 (i) 329,517 27.54
Mr Muckenzie 6,881 619 7,500 - 7,500 -
Ms Lyohs 34,543 3.113 37.656 6,400(ii) 44,056 -
Mr Atkins 27,300 2,700 30,000 43,488 (iii) 73,488 59.18
Mr Timms 150,000 12,479 162,479 - 162,479 -
Mr Owenhs 103.333 9.075 112,408 6.879 (ii) 119,287 -
2008 Totul 587,063 30,236 617,299 156,611 773,910
() This relates to options ($90,764) and shares ($9,080).
(if) This relates to shares.
(i) This relates to options.
No key munaugement personnel uppointed during the year received u puyment us purt of their consideration for
ugreeiny to hold the position.
_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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Share Opftions held by Key Management Personnel
During the finuncial yeur, the followiny shure options were on issue:
. . . Grant date .
Options series Grant date Expiry date PRI Vesting date
DO December 2006 29 December 2006 30 Juhe 2010 $0.0350 29 December 2006
ESOP April 2007 17 April 2007 30 June 2010 $0.0473 17 April 2007
DO December 2007 10 December 2007 30 June 2010 $0.0407 10 December 2007
DO December 2007 10 December 2007 30 Juhe 2011 $0.0362 10 December 2007
DO December 2007 10 December 2007 30 June 2011 $0.0266 10 December 2007

“DO” meuns director share options und “"ESOP” meuns share options issued under the employee share option plan.
Shares issued under ESOP were issued to the person prior to the person being uppointed a director.

Duriny the yeur ended 30 June 2009 ho share options were grunted to key munagement personnel.
The followinyg tuble summarises the value of options yranted, exercised or lupsed during the year that relate to key
munugement personnel:

Options granted value Options exercised value Options lapsed value
at grant date at exercise date at time of lapse

$ $ $
Ms King - - -
Mr Crosby - - -
Mr Muckenzie - - -
Ms Lyons - - -
Mr Morgun - - -
Mr Derham - - -
Mr Robinson - - -
Mr Forrester - - -
Mr Timms - - -

Mr Owehs - - _

Vulue of options — busis of culculation

. Value of options granted at grant date is calculated by multiplying the fair value of options at grant date by the
number of options granted during the financial year.

. Value of options exercised at exercise date is calculated by multiplying the fair value of options atf the time they are
exercised (calculated as the difference between exercise price and the Australian Securities Exchange last sale price
on the day that the options were exercised) by the number of options exercised during the financial year.

. Value of options lapsed at the lapsed date is calculated by multiplying the fair value of options at the time they lapsed
multiplied by the number of options lapsed during the financial year.

The totul value of optionsincluded in compensation for the financiul year is culculuted in uccordunce with Accounting
Stundurd AASB 2 “Shure-bused Puyment”. Options grunted during the finuncial yeur are recoynised in compensution
over their vesting period.

Shares held in escrow that had been issued to Key Management Personnel

No shures have been issued under the Employee Share Scheme to key munugement personnel during the yeur.

Unhder the Employee Shure Scheme shures were issued to key munuygement personnel on 17 April 2007 in two
franches and are subject to continuity of service reqyuirements through to 30 June 2009 (first franch) and to
continuity of service requirements through to 30 Juhe 2011 (second tranch). The shares dare held in escrow until the
continuity of service requirement is met.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report
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 DIRECTORS” REPORT

The following tuble summMmarises the movement for the year in the humber of these shares held by key maunagement
personnel that are held in escrow is set out below:

Number
Bulunce ut beyinninyg of finunciul yeur 380,000
Releused from escrow -
Cuncelled during the finunciul yeaur (380,000)

Bulunce ut the end of finunciul year -

The followiny ftuble summarises the value of options grunted, exercised or lapsed during the year that relate to key
maunhuygement personnel:

Shares granted value Shares released from escrow Shares cancelled at
at grant date value at released date time of cancellation
$ $ $
Ms Kiny - - -
Mr Crosby - - -
Mr Muckenzie - - -
Ms Lyons - - -
Mr Morgun - - -
Mr Derham - - -
Mr Robinson - - -
Mr Forrester - - 180
Mr Timms - - -
Mr Owens - - 200

Value of options — busis of calculution

. Value of shares granted at grant date is calculated by multiplying the fair value of shares at grant date by the number
of options granted during the financial year.

o Value of options released from escrow is calculated by multiplying the fair value of shares at the time they are released
(calculated as the Australian Securities Exchange last sale price on the day that the shares were released) by the
number of shares released during the financial year.

. Value of shares cancelled is calculated by multiplying the buyback price for the shares to be cancelled by the number
cancelled during the financial year.

The director’s report is signed in uccordunce with a resolution of directors mude pursuunt to section 298(2) of the
Corporations Act 2001

Managing Director
30th September 2009

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report

14



O OO0

® 000
e () )

" 5 5 P 0O O PO D OS OO BDPOSBORDOEE0D

OO0 SO O OO0 O0OOOOCOOOOOOGOONOOOOOOOOOOO0 L a0 o 00
30 e e 3 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 0 3 e e e e e e e e e e e e e )
SOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOONHOOOOOOOOOOOOCOOOOOOOOCR
& & 9 & & @ & &4 & & & & & & © O 0 & 0 0 & 0 O O & 6 0 O BSOSO O LSBT e e
3 e 0 @ @& » S 8 o @ & & ] L] e @ & & & & @ 0 0 " " 0O e 0 0 O 0 0 e 0 0
L ] * & 9 ® & © & 0 8 & & " B " 9 8 B B O
nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn & ¥ & 8 & ¥ W% 8 w9

.........................

]
Dedoille Touche Tohmalsu
® ABN 74 490 121 060
11 Waymoulh Street
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 1969
Adelaide SA 5001 Australia

DX: 664

Tel: +61 (0) B B407 7000
Fax: +61 (0) 8 8407 7001
www.deloille.com.au

The Board of Directors
Reclaim Industries Limited
93 Frome Street
ADELAIDE SA 5001

30 September 2009

Dear Board Members
Reclaim Industries Limited

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide the following declaration
of independence to the directors of Reclaim Industries Limited.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of Reclaim Industries Limited for the financial year
ended 30 June 2009, I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of*

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Yours sincerely

— —_—
DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

@«W.

J ] Handel
Partner
Chartered Accountants

Liability limiled by a scheme approved under Professional Slandards Legislalion.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report
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" INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note $ $ $ $
Revenue from continuiny operutions 3 12,993,833 15,820,340 3,347,569 3,668,800
Ruw muteriuls und consumubles used (3.490,290) (4,411,583) (422,882) (1,791.,362)
Finance costs (169,573) (19.431) (59.939) (15,975)
Depreciution und umortisution expense (431,066) (389,964) (318.,824) (281,945)
Rent (5634,532) (449,575) (285,802) (259.,820)
Hire of eyuipment (238,528) (216,844) (30,894) -
Fuel (236,511) (197.,093) (27,037) -
Other expenses (1,260,293) (1,144,288) (127.497) (21.132)
Employee reluted costs 4 (6.275,431) (4,876,834) (1,549,742) (1.127.,856)
External contractors’ expense (2,170,555) (2,841,199 (186,136) (178.272)
Freight expense (472,504) (594,341) (173,084) (90.,628)
Repuirs and maintenance (504,173) (558,186) (299,309) (394,293)
Travel und reluted expense (198,392) (653,678) (6,933) (2,785)
Shure bused puyments 23 18,032 (189,035) 18,032 (189,035)
Allowunce for doubtful loun 10 - - (2,721,061) -
Impuirment of investment in subsidiaries 14 - - (139.620) -
Shure of net profifs Qf ussociutes 13 B 16,020 B B
accounted for using the eyuity method !
(Loss) / guin on sule of ussets (202,533) 12,197 (182,345) 11,907
Loss before income tax (2,172,516) (693,485) (3.165,504) (672,396)
Income tux expense 5 (40,771) (23,887) - -
Loss for the year (2,213,287) (717,372) (3.,165,504) (672,396)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the purent (2,201,388) (731,268) (3.,165,504) (672,396)
Minority Interests (11,899) 13.896 - -
(2,213.,287) (717,372) (3.165,504) (672,396)
Earnings per share
Busic loss per share (cents per share) 8 (2.75) (1.0)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share) (2.75) (1.0)
The ubove income statement should be reud in conjunction with the accompunying hotes.
_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2009

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cush and cush eyuivulents
Trade und other receivubles
Inventories

Other

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade und other receivubles
Other finunciul ussets
Goodwill

Other intunyible ussets
Plunt und equipment

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade und other puyubles
Customer deposits
Borrowings

Provisions

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowinys

Deferred income (gyovernment grunt)

Provisions

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued cupitul
Reserves
Accumuluted losses
Parent entity interest
Minority equity interest

TOTAL EQUITY

Note

10

12

10

15

16
18

21
20

21

20

22
23
24

Uﬂ'ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ
] LK R

ﬂ.ﬂﬂ..l‘l..l
L

Consolidated

2009
$

250,682
1,441,844
739,093
86,150
2,517,769

383,119
20,044
2,750,045
3,153,208
5,670,977

1,180,959
274,032
844,113
160,762

2,459,866

573,311
407,937
39,264
1,020,512
3,480,378
2,190,599

7,532,552
190,059
(5.552,939)
2,169,672
20,927
2,190,599

2008
$

1,166,629
1,992,436
634,883
142,835
3,936,783

143,119
27,568
1,520,859
1,691,546
5,628,329

1,564,981
162,789
87,635
192,994
2,008,399

282,872

282,872
2,291,271
3,337,068

6,375,692
280,091
(3.351,551)
3,304,232
32,826
3,337,058

The ubove bulunce sheet should be reud in conjunction with the uccompunyiny notes.
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Company
2009 2008

$ $
202,424 1,132,141
365,240 442,340
246,842 156,239
10,834 102,334
825,340 1,833,054
278,593 451,674
337,246 476,866
240,000 -
2,291,365 1,269,482
3,147,204 2,198,022
3,972,544 4,031,076
1,359,178 591,342
792,859 74,245
140,762 140,487
2,292,799 806,074
381,739 275,521
407 937 -
39.264 -
828,940 275,521
3,121,739 1,081,595
850,805 2,949,481
7,532,552 6,375,692
190,059 280,091
(6.871,806) (3,706.302)
850,805 2,949,481
850,805 2,949,481
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- STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME AND EXPENSE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note $ $ $ $
Net income / (expense) recoynised B B B B
directly in eqyuity
Loss for the period (2,213,287) 717.372) (3,165,504 (672,396)
e (2.213,287) (717372 (3.165,504) (672,396)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (2,201,388) (731.268)  (3,165,504) (672,396)
Minority interests (11.899) 13.896 - -
(2,213,287) 717.372) (3,165,504 (672,396)

The ubove stutement of recoyhised income und expense should be reud in conjunction with the accompunying
notes.

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report



s|=-n_
aseoeoaeeeueo!.tn!t.t.
s G
o 0'

CASH FLOW STATEM

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009
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Consolidated

2009

Note $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers 14,763,604
Puyments to suppliers und employees (15,946,362)
Intferest and other costs of finunce puid (169,573)
Income tux puid (40,771)
Nolcosn ey provded BY g 39810
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Z:rjz%sgr:fr property, plunt and (1.289.879)
Proceed; from sule of property, plant 3,500
and eyuipment !
Proceeds from yovernment grant 412,771
Interest received 27.868
Investments -
Loun repuyments from related purties -
Payments for deposits -
Purchuse of Budyget Tyres business 31 -
Acyuisition of confrolled entity, net of 31 B
cush ucyuired
e @570
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shures 1,112,836
Puyment for shure buy-buck to eyuity (998)
holders of the purent
Puyment for share issue costs (26,978)
Proceeds from borrowinys 440,975
Repuyment of borrowings (202,940)
Net cash provided by financing activities 1,322,895
Net decrease in cash held (915,947)
Cash at beginning of financial year 1,166,629
Cash at end of financial year 9 250,682

2008
$

15,793,586
(16,613,869)
(19.431)
(23.887)

(863.601)

(155,468)

60,745

59,603

(29,908)

(50,000)

(115,028)

500,000
(854)

(30,000)

(167.,369)
301,777

(676,852)
1,843,481
1,166,629

ﬂ.ﬂﬂ..l‘l..l

The ubove cush flow stutement should be reud in conjunction with the uccompunying notes.
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Company
2009 2008
$ $
3,696,977 1,375,518
(3.380.714) (2,204,693)
(59,939 (15,975)
166,324 (845,150)
(1.211,125) (105,678)
12,227 85,808
412,771 -
1,638 623
- (50,000)
(1,647,091) 6,608,469
(2,431,580) 6,639,222
1,112,836 500,000
(998) (854)
(26,978) (30,000)
440,975 -
(180,296) (3.003)
1,345,539 466,143
(929.717) 6,160,215
1,132,141 (5,028,074)
202,424 1,132,141
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of Compliance

The finunciul report is u generul purpose finuncial report which hus been prepared in uccordunce with the Corporutions
Act 2001, Accountinyg Stundurds und Interpretautions, und complies with other requirements of the law.

The financiul report includes the sepurute financiul stutements of the Compuny und the Consoliduted finuncidl
statements of the Group.

Accounting stundurds include Australiun equivalents to Internationul Financiul Reporting Stundurds (CA-IFRS”).
Compliunce with A-IFRS ensures thut the financiul stutements und hotes of the Compuny und the Group comply with
Internationul Finunciul Reporting Stundurds ('IFRS”).

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 29 September 2009.

Basis of Preparation

The finuncidl report hus been prepured oh u going concern busis of historicul cost, except for the revuluution of
certain hon-current ussets uand finuncial instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration given in
exchunye for ussets. All umounts are presented in Australian dollurs, unless otherwise noted.

In the upplicution of the Group’s uccounting policies, us set out below, munugement is required to muke judgments,
estimutes und ussumptions ubout currying values of ussets und liubilities that are nhot readily upparent from other
sources. The estimutes und ussociuted ussumptions ure bused on historicul experience und various other fuctors that
ure believed to be reusonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the busis of muking the judgments.
Actudl results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying ussumptions dre reviewed on ah ohyoiny busis. Revisions to accounting estimutes are
recoghised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision uffects only that period, or in the period of the
revision und future periods if the revision uffects both current and future periods.

Going Concern

The finuncidl report hus been prepured on u gyoiny concern busis which contemplutes continuity of hormal business
activities and the redlisution of ussets und the settlement of liubilities in the ordinary course of business.

For the yeur ended 30 June 2009 the Group und the Compuny maude u loss of $2,213,287 und $3,165,504 (2008:
§717.,372 und $672,396) respectively und hud net cush used in / (provided by) operuting uctivities of $1,393,102 und
(§156.,324) (2008: $863.,601 und $845,150) respectively.

The Directors believe thut it is uppropriate to prepure the finunciul stautements on u going concern busis for the

following reasons:

(@) The Company has recently installed new machinery at its Western Australia (WA) operations and is in the process of
upgrading the South Australia (SA) production facilities. These new machines will have the effect of reducing the unit
cost of production once they are operating at normal operating levels and will also significantly increase the volume of
production. The WA machinery was installed and ready for use during May 2009 and the SA machinery was installed
during August 2009. The full financial effect of these machines is expected to be realised from September 2009.

(b)  The Company’s single largest source of income is from rubberised surfacing sales. This division has experienced a
decline in sales of 34% compared to the corresponding period last year. This decline is due predominantly to the
prevailing economic conditions. The Directors believe that the Group and the Company will benefit from the “Building
the Revolution” - Federal Government Schools Funding Programme as school playgrounds are a significant component
of surfacing revenues. Therefore it is expected that revenues should return to historical levels.

(c)  As aresult of the additional production capacity at both the WA and SA production facilities new markets need to be
sourced to sell bulk rubber and associated materials to wholesale customers. The focus on these markets has been
successful to date with in excess of $600,000 sales to wholesale customers in the first two months of the 2010 financial
year. The Directors believe this market will be an area for future growth and is a key strategy to reduce the reliance on
the surfacing division of the business.

(d)  The Company has continued to review operating costs related to the rubberised surfacing division. It has identified
cost savings that can be achieved that will reduce cost of sales. These were implemented in the later part of the 2009
financial year and have resulted in a lower level of sales being required in order to break even.

(e)  During September 2009 the Company has successfully negotiated an additional finance facility which is yet to be
drawn down. The facility is a trade debtors factoring facility which enables the Company to drawdown up to 80% of
the frade debtors up to an additional amount of $400,000. The debtor factoring facility is initially for a twelve month
period and then continues until either party gives notice (3 months) to terminate the facility.

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(M) On 28 September 2009 the Company signed a licence agreement to operate the former Renaza tyre processing
facility in New South Wales. A purchase agreement was also signed on the same day for the Company to acquire

the tyre processing equipment and inventfory for $621,000 (excluding GST). The purchase price is due approximately

4 weeks from the acquisition date. The Company is currently in discussions with a number of financiers in relation to
providing finance for the acquisition. (Refer to note 29 for further details).

The Group hus mude u strony sturt to the 2010 finuncial year with the first two months generating un unaudited profit
of $1563,354. Further, the Group expects to yenerute u positive operuting cushflow in the first quurter us u result of the

initiatives listed above that have begun o take full effect.

In the event thut:

(@)  the targeted level of sales and therefore operating cash improvement forecasted; and
(b)  the financing for the acquisition of the Renaza tyre processing facility; and

(c)  the anticipated cash inflows from the operation of the Renaza tyre processing facility

dre hot uchieved und the Group und the Compuny dre unuble to obtuin additionul finunhcing und eqyuity raisings,
then there is signhificant uncertainty as to whether the Group and the Compuny may be duble to continue us going
concerns und, therefore, whether they will redlise their assets und extinguish their ligbilities in the hormal course of

business und af the amounts stated in the financial report.

The finunciul report does hot include udjustments reluting to the recoverubility and clussificution of recorded usset
umounts or to the umount und clussification of liabilities that Might be hecessary should the Group and the Company

not continue us yoinyg concerns.

Significant Accounting Policies

The followiny sighificant accounting policies huve been udopted in the preparation und presentation of the financial

report:

(a) Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. In the event that settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration
is deferred, cost is determined by discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date of

acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on plant and equipment. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, so as to write off the
net cost or other revalued amount of each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated residual value. The estimated

useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the

difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
The following estimated useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

¢ Plant and equipment 10-40%
e Motor Vehicle 20%
* Leased Assets 20-25%

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and investments in money market instruments, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, where drawn, are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance

sheet,

(¢) Employee Benefits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and long service

leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their nominal

values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured
as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the consolidated entity in respect of services

provided by employees up to reporting date.
Contributions to accumulated benefit superannuation benefit plans are expensed when incurred.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report
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 'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

)
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Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except:

i. where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the cost
of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or

ii. forreceivables and payables, which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of receivables.

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financial activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating
cash flows.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured aft its cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised. Goodwill is subsequently measured at its cost less any impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)
expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are
tested for impairment annually.

Income Tax

Current tax

Current tax is calculated by references to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable
profit or tax loss for the period. It is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by reporting date. Current tax for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that
it is unpaid (or refundable).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary
differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and
the corresponding tax base of those items.

In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible temporary
differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised. However, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the femporary differences giving rise o them arise from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities (other
than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit. Furthermore, a
deferred tax liability is not recognised in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from goodwill.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period(s) when
the asset and liability giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacting by reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the consolidated entity expects, atf the reporting date, to
recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the company/consolidated entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the income statement, except when it relates to
items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or where
it arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, in which case it is taken into account in the determination
of goodwill or excess.

Tax consolidation

The company and all its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consolidated group under Australian
taxation law. Reclaim Industries Limited is the head entity in the tax-consolidated group. Tax expense/income, deferred
tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of the members of the tax-consolidated group
are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax-consolidated group using the ‘separate
taxpayer within group’ approach. Current tax liabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and tax credits of the members of the tax-consolidated group are recognised by the company (as head entity in the
tax-consolidated group).

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

@

(h)
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Due fo the existence of a tax funding arrangement between the entities in the tax-consolidated group, amounts
are recognised as payable to or receivable by the company and each member of the group in relation to the tax
contribution amounts paid or payable between the parent entity and the other members of the tfax-consolidated group
in accordance with the arrangement. Further information about the tax funding arrangement is detailed in note 5 to the
financial statements. Where the tax contribution amount recognised by each member of the tax-consolidated group
for a particular period is different to the aggregate of the current tax liability or asset and any deferred tax asset arising
from unused tax losses and tax credits in respect of that period, the difference is recognised as a contribution from (or
distribution to) equity participants.

Financial instruments issued by the Company

Debt and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of fransaction costs.

Ofther financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Inventories
Inventories are valued af the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Leased Assets

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at their fair value or, if lower, at amounts equal to the present
value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against
income.

Finance leased assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including
special purposes entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) (referred to as ‘the Group’ in these financial
statements). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group. All intra-group fransactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assefs (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries are identified separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to
the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group
except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.
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 'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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o

(n)
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits
is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
reporting date, taking info account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows.

Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying amounts of ifs tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where
the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the consolidated entity estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit fo which the asset belongs.

Gooawill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Any impairment of goodwill
is not subsequently reversed.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated o be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment
loss is tfreated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(cash-generating unit) in prior years.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions are safisfied:

» the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

* the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

* the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the fransaction will flow to the entity; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the fransaction can be measured reliably.

Interest revenue

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, net of fransaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investments in subsidiaries
are measured at cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(P)

(@
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Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less impairment.
Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate method.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the investment
have been impacted. For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of frade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a frade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit and loss.

With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, any subsequent increase in fair value after an impairment 10ss is
recognised directly in equity.

Intangible Assets

Client list

Client listings are recorded at cost and are amortised over 5 years, as the client lists are amortised over the projected
cash flows from the clients over the 5 years following acquisition, but are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the client listing may be impaired.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
All potential intfangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair value can be measured reliably.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the business
combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet
the conditions for recognition under AASB 3 ‘Business Combinations” are recognised af their fair values af the acquisition
date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with the AASB
5 'Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less
costs to sell.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of
the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If affer reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value
of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly atftributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their infended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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"NOTE.S -TO 'T-HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(s) Government grants
Government grants are assistance by the government in the form of fransfers of resources to the Group in return for past
or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. Government grants include
government assistance where there are no conditions specifically relating to the operating activities of the Company
other than the requirement to operate in certain regions or industry sectors.
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and the grants will be received.
Government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the balance sheet and recognised as income on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
Other government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs
which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised as income of the period in
which it becomes receivable.
()  Foreign currency
The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the
results and financial position of the entity are expressed in Australian dollars, which is the functional currency of Reclaim
Industries Limited, and the presentation currency for the financial statements.
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the fransactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date.
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period.
(u) Payables
Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make
future payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.
2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(a) Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to contfinue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2008.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in note 21, cash and cash
equivalents and equity atftributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and accumulated
losses as disclosed in note 22, 23 and 24 respectively.
Operating cash flows and share issues are used to maintain and expand the Group’s operations, as well as to make the
routine outflows of tax and repayment of maturing debt.
(b) Categories of financial instruments

.
26

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $

Financial assets

Louns und receivubles 1,441,844 1,992,436 643,833 894,014
Cush und cush eyuivulents 250,682 1,166,629 202,424 1,132,141
Investment in subsidiuries - - 337.246 476,866
Financial liabilities

Amortised cost 2,598,383 1,935,488 2,633,776 941,108
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(©)

(d)

(e

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of the financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments; however the Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk fo which it is
exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate risks and aging analysis for credit risk.
Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors with assistance from suitably qualified management.

Market risk
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates (refer note 2(e)). The Group does
not enter info interest rate caps and/or swaps 1o mitigate the risk of rising interest rates.

Interest rate risk management

The Company and the Group are exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and
floating interest rates.

The Company and the Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity unalyses below have been determined bused on the exposure to interest rutes for both derivutive and
non-derivative instruments at the reporting dute and the stipuluted change taking place at the beyinning of the
finunciul year und held constunt throughout the reporting period. A 50 busis point increuse or decreuse is used when
reporting interest rate risk internully to directors und represents munuygement’s ussessment of the possible chanye in
interest rutes.

At reporting dute, if interest rates had been 50 busis points higher or lower und dll other variables were held constunt,
the Group’s und Compuny’s het loss would increuse by $2,204 und decreuse by $2,204 respectively (2008: nil).

The Group’s sensitivity fo interest rates has increused during the current year due to the use of variuble rate debt
instruments.

)

@

(h)

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currency, hence exposes the Group to exchange
rate fluctuations. The Group does not enter into any forward exchange contracts to mitigate this risk. As at 30 June 2009
there are no amounts outstanding denominated in foreign currency (2008: nil)

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s exposures to its
counterparties are monitored. Credit exposure is controlled by a weekly meeting of management.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Group of counterparties
having similar characteristics.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for losses, represents
the Group’s maximum exposure.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, who have built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Included in note 28(c) is a listing of additional undrawn facilities that the
Company/Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Company’s and the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

______ .
28

2009
Non-interest beuriny
Variuble interest rate instruments

Fixed interest rate instruments

2008
Nonh-interest beuriny

Fixed interest rate instruments

2009
Non-inferest beuring
Vuriuble interest rute instruments

Fixed interest rate instruments

2008
Non-interest beuring

Fixed interest rate instruments

Consolidated

Weighted average
effective
interest rate

%
9.16
10.69
8.82
Company

Weighted average
effective
interest rate

%

9.16
8.37

8.61

Less than 1
year

$

1,080,959
444,341
234,403

1,759,703

1,564,981
117,722
1,682,703

Less than 1
year

$

1,359,178
444,341
160,022

1,963,541

591,342
101.349
692,691
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1-5 years

650,356
650,356

242,278
242,278

1-5 years

429,722
429,722

233.024
233,024

5+ years

85,730
85,730

5+ years

85,734
85,734

The following tables detail the Company’s and the Group'’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The
tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including
interest that will be earned on those assets except where the Company/Group anticipates that the cash flow will occur

in a different period.
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

2009

Non-interest beuring

Fixed interest rate instruments

2008
Non-interest beuring
Fixed interest rate instruments

1,666,526

4.00 26,087

3,079,065

7.05 583,407

2009
Nonh-interest beuriny
Fixed interest rate instruments

2008
Non-inferest beuring
Fixed interest rate instruments

541,664
26,087

278,593

4.00

1,494,481
583,407

451,674

7.05

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing

lysis using prices from observable current market fransactions.
unt of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in

(i) Fair value of financial instruments

models based on discounted cash flow ana

The directors consider that the carrying amo

the financial statements approximates their fair values.
3. REVENUE

Sule of yoods:

- customers

- controlled entities

Interest received other persons
Other

12,451,884 15,760,737 1,032,578 1,280,195
- - 1,851,367 2,387,982

27,868 59,603 1,638 623
514,081 - 461,986 -

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report

29



L ]

... e ®

... LK

2 2 8 ]

.'...'...l.....'.....'. .l.-.'l.....l...- L LR
900 000000 HO0OOSNOOSSS
P O @ 0 0 0 0 0 00 00 00 QOO REESONS
LR DR D DR D R BN DR DR BN DR DR DR N O R BN
P @ O 0 0 ® 6 0 O O 0 6 9 OO 0 O OB B O O W
® @ ® & @ & © 0 B B 8 O O 6 O 8 O 0 O 6 F O B B8 0
.’...".‘...'-Q.".‘I-!-IDU
B R e " " 8 8 8 w8 . oo

30

l.oeteaawensve
e ® ® & e
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4. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Other expenses

Loss for the yeur includes the followiny
expenses:

Employee reluted costs:
- post employment benefits
- shure bused puyments

- other employee benefits

Finunce costs:
- interest on obligutions on finunce leuses

- other interest expense

Depreciation und amortisation:
- depreciution of fixed ussets
- umortisation of leused ussets

- umortisation of customer lists

Cost of yoods sold
Operdting leuse rentuls

5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@) Income tax recognised in loss

Current tax expense

Adjustments recoghised in the current year in
relation to the current tux of prior yeurs

(469,681)
18,032
(4,805,750)
(6.257,399)

(50,996)
(118,577)
(169,573)

(345,343)
(78,199
(7.524)
(431,066)

(7.623,115)
(634,532)

(438,915)
(189,035)
(4,437.919)
(5.065.869)

(15,148)
(4,283)
(19.431)

(339.683)
(40.,249)
(10,032)

(389.964)

(10,244,479
(449,575)

Consolidated

2009
$

40,771

Deferred tux expehse relating to origination and
reversul of femporury differences und tux losses

40,771

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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23,887

9 00 00 P PO PP OO POSOSPTOIEDPOSIOSOISTO OSSO BN
90 0 00 00 PO O OO 0D

h

s

) R R e LR
lll.ll.l.l..l..ll.l..Ill!!lwﬂﬂm-ﬂd}n}*"m‘

‘.1 ._\':

(152,214) (101,507)
18,032 (189,035)
(1,397,528) (1,026,349)
(1,531,710) (1.316,891)
(28,165) (14,089)
(31.774) (1.886)
(59,939) (15,975)
(261,770) (245,287)
(57,054) (36,658)
(318.824) (281,945)
(1,725,877) (1,070,713)
(285,802) (259,820)
Company
2009 2008
$ $
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5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The primu facie income tux expense on pre-tux uccounting loss from operution reconciles to the income tux expense
in the financial statements us follows:

Loss for the period (2,172,516) (693,485) (3.165,504) (672,396)
Income ftux expense culculuted ut 30% (651,755) (208,046) (949.,651) (201,719)
Shured bused puyments (5.410) 56,711 (5.410) 56,711
Non-deductible expenses 7,465 4,648 7,408 -
Allowunce for doubtful loun - - 816,318 -
Impdairment of investment in subsidiaries - - 41,886 -
Investment ullowunce (44,401) - (38.,240) -
Current losses not recoynised 446,499 142,602 6,218 144,383
%(J:rg%r:rig;edur temporary differences not 247 602 4,085 121.471 625
et ecoune n e curert yer : :
Income fux expense (income) 40,771 23,887 - -

The tux rate used in the ubove reconciliation is the corporate tax rate of 30% puyable by Australian corporate entities
oh fuxuble profits under Australiun tux luw. There hus been ho chunge in the corporute tux rate when compured with
the previous reporting period.

(b) Recognised deferred tax assets and (liabilities)

Deferred tux ussets und (liubilities) are uttributauble to the followiny:

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Trade und other receivubles 15,968 11,591 - 6,000
Plunt und eqyuipment 7,667 (47,094) (46,866) (55,585)
Client list (6,013) (16,540) - -
Other ussets - 19 - 19
Trade und other payables 16,108 20,954 7,010 12,295
Employee benefits 54,008 42,146 54,008 42,146
Warranty provision 6,000 15,752 - -
Deferred income 122,381 - 122,381 -
Shure issue costs 17.079 15,007 17.079 15,007
Other 76,085 11,699 8,226 12,339
309,283 52,996 161,838 31,683
Temporury differences not recoynised (309,283) (562,996) (161,838) (31,683)

Net deferred tax usset / (liability) - - - -

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report
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5. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

(©)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tux ussets have not been recoynised in respect of the following items:

Net temporul differences

Tux losses revenue:

- Heud entity

(d

Movement in recognised net deferred tax asset

Openiny bulunce -

Recoynised in eyuity -

Recoynised in income -

Closing bulance -

(e)

Tax consolidation

Relevance of tax consolidation to the Group
The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are in a tax-consolidated group and are therefore taxed
as a single entity. The head entity within the tax consolidated group is Reclaim Industries Limited.

Nature of tax funding arrangement
Entities within the tax-consolidated group have entered into a tax funding arrangement with the head entity. Under the
terms of the tax funding arrangement, Reclaim Industries Limited and its wholly owned Australian resident entities have
agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment to or from the head entity, based on the current tax liability or current tax asset
of the entity. Such amounts are reflected in amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the-consolidated

group.

309,283

348,064

- Subsidiuries in tfux consoliduted yroup 782,128
- Other subsidiaries -
1,439,475

52,996

341,846
341,847

736,689

6. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

The key munhugement personnel of the Group during the yeur were:
Ms Jennifer King — Non-Executive Chairperson

Mr John Crosby — Managing Director

Mr Neil Mackenzie — Non-Executive Director

Ms Elizabeth Lyons — Non-Executive Director (resigned 29 October 2008)
Mr Christopher Forrester — Executive Director (resigned 25 November 2008)

Mr Matthew Bickford-Smith — Non-Executive Director (appointed 15 December 2008 and resigned 28 April 2009)

Mr Scott Morgan — Chief Financial Officer (appointed 7 October 2008)
Mr Paul Derham — National Sales Manager (appointed 13 October 2008)
Mr lan Robinson — General Manager SA

Mr Peter Owens — Chief Financial Officer (resigned 1 August 2008)
Mr Richard Timms — National Sales Manager (resigned 28 February 2009)
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161.838

348,064
782,128

1,292,030

31,683

341,846
341,847

715,376

The uyyreyute compensution of key munagement personnel of the Group and the Compuny is set out below:

2009
$
Short-term employee benefits 614,477
Post employment benefits 54,418
Shure-bused puyment (23,545)
645,350

______ .
32
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7. REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $

Remunerution of the auditors and reluted entfities
of the purent entity for:
BDO Kendalls
- uudit or review of the financiul report 13,302 45,581 - -
- due diligence services - 10,100 - -
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
- uudit or review of the financiul report 57.841 -

71,143 55,681 - -

On the 27 November 2008 ut the Compuny’s Ahnudl Genheral Meeting the Compuany’s shareholders dpproved u
chaunye in the uuditor to Deloitte Touche Tohmutsu.

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Consolidated
2009 2008
Cents per Share Cents per Share$
Busic edrnings per share — loss (2.75) 1.0
Diluted eurnings per shure - loss (2.75) (1.0

Busic und diluted eurninys per shure

The eurnings und weighted averagye number of ordinury shures used in the
culculution of busic und diluted eurninys per shure are us follows:

$ $
Earnings (2,201,388) (731,268)
Earnings used in the culculution of busic und diluted eurhinys per shure uygree
directly to net loss in the income stutement.
Number Number
Weighted averuge humber of ordinary shares 80,127,645 72,653,663
The humber of ordinury shures used in the culculation of diluted eurnings per
share is the sume as the hnumber used in the calculation of busic eurnings per
share, us share options ure not considered dilutive.
9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Cush ut bunk 224,682 586,629 176.424 552,141
Term Deposit 26,000 580,000 26,000 580,000
250,682 1,166,629 202,424 1,132,141

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report —
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10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Current
Trude receivubles 1,490,580 2,022,436 360,750 462,340
Allowunce for doubtful debts (63,226) (30,000) - (20,000)
Other 4,490 - 4,490 -
1,441,844 1,992,436 365,240 442,340
Non-Current
Amounts receivuble from:
wholly-owned entities - - 4,857,727 2,309,747
Less provision for non-recovery - - (4,579,134) (1,858,073)
- - 278,593 451,674
a) Impaired trade receivables

10.

b)

c)

______ .
34

As at 30 June 2009 frade receivables of the Group and the Company with a value of $53,226 and nil respectively (2008
$30,057, and $20,761 respectively) were impaired. The amount of the provision in the Group and Company was $53,226
and nil (2008 $30,000 and $20,000).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The ageing of the receivables is as follows:

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
1 to 3 months 24,000 1,373 - 1,373
3 to 6 months - 6,296 - -
Over 6 months 29,226 22,388 - 19,388
53,226 30,057 - 20,761

Past due trade receivables but not impaired

As at 30 June 2009 frade receivables of the Group and the Company with a value of $201,662 and nil (2008 $97,188,
and $85,777 respectively) were past due but not impaired. The amount of the provision was nil and nil (2008 nil and
nil).

Up fo 3 months 172,022 78,512 - 67,101
3 to 6 months 29,640 18,676 - 18,676
201,662 97.188 = 85,777

In determining the recoverability of a frade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the datfe credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited
due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts for trade receivables

Openinyg bulunce ut 1 July 2008 30,000 - 20,000 -
Additionul provisions 23,226 30,000 - 20,000
Amounts used - - - -
Amounts written buck - - (20,000) -
Balunce at 30 June 2009 53,226 30,000 = 20,000

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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11. INVENTORIES
At cost
Rauw Mmuteriuls 598,240 547,103 176,804 125,270
Finished goods 140,853 87,780 70,038 30,969
739,093 634,883 246,842 156,239
12. OTHER ASSETS
Current
Prepuyments 47,150 60,501 - 60,501
Rent bonds 39,000 82,334 10,834 41,833
86,150 142,835 10,834 102,334

13. ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Group previously held a 50% interest in Duskview Pty Ltd which was accounted for under the equity accounting
method. During the year ended 30 June 2008 the Compuny purchused the remuining 50% interest in Duskview Pty Ltd
(refer to nhote 31 Acyuisition of Businesses). The movement in the eqyuity accounted investment is set out below:

Consolidated

2009 2008
$ $
Cuarrying umount at the beyginning of the financial yeur - 230,803
Share of profit ufter tux - 16,029
Acyuisition of 50% mukes investment wholly owned - (246,832)
Cuarrying umount at end of financial year - -
14. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $

Investment in subsidiuries ut cost - - 476,866 476,866
Provision for impuirment - - (139.620) -

- - 337.246 476,866
15. GOODWILL
Gross carrying amount
Bulunce at beyinning of financial year 143,119 143,119 - -
Additions 240,000 - 240,000 -
Bulunce ut end of finunciul yeur 383,119 143,119 240,000 =
Accumulated impairment losses
Bulunce ut beyinning of finunciul yeur - - - -
Impuirment losses for the year - - - -
Bulance ut end of financial year - - - -
Net book value
At the beyinning of the finuncial yeur 143,119 143,119 - -
At the end of the financiul year 383,119 143,119 240,000 -

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill relates to the acquisition of Duskview Pty Ltd and Budyet Tyres (note 31). Goodwill has been ullocuted to the
collections und productions cush generuting unit for impuirment testing purposes us un individuul cush yenerating
unit,

The recoveruble umount of collections und productions wus bused on u vulue in use culculation. Thut culculation
uses cush flow projections bused on finunciul budyets upproved by munuygement covering u five-yeur period, und
u discount rate of 20%. Cush flows beyond that five-yeur period have been extrapoluted using no yrowth rate.
Manhugement believe that uny reusonuble possible chunge in the key ussumptions on which the Group’s recoveruble
umount is bused would hot cause the Group’s currying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The key ussumption used in value in use culculutions is budyeted income und expenses which ure bused on uctuuls
immediutely before the budyet period increused by historical trends.

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
S $ S S

Other intunyible ussets relute to customer lists
Gross carrying amount
Bulunce ut beyinninyg of finunciul yeur 37,600 37.600 - -
Additions - - - -
Bulunce ut end of finunciul yeur 37.600 37.600 - -
Accumulated impairment losses
Bulunce ut beyinning of finunciul year (10,032) - - -
Amortisation expense (7,524) (10,032) - -
Bulunce ut end of finunciul yeur (17.,556) (10,032) = -
Net book value
At the beyinniny of the finuncial year 27,568 37,600 - -
At the end of the fihuncial year 20,044 27,568 = =
17. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Country of Incorporation Percentage Owned (%)

2009 2008

Parent Entity:
Recluim Industries Limited (i) Australiu 100 100
Subsidiuries of Recluim Industries Limited:
Playsufe Australia Pty Ltd (i) Austruliu 100 100
Recluim Corporution Pty Ltd (i) Australia 100 100
Reclaim Eneryy Pty Ltd
(formerly Leisuresufe Holdinygs Pty Ltd) (i) Australiu 100 100
Reclaim SA Pty Ltd (i) Australiu 100 100
Recluim Asiu Pty Ltd (i) Australiu 100 100
Duskview Pty Ltd (i) Australia 100 100
Reclaim Collections Pty Ltd Australia 70 70

(i) These companies are members of the tax-consolidated group and Reclaim Industries Limited is the head entity of the
tax-consolidated group.
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18. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Gross Carrying Amount
Balunce at 1 July 2007

Acyquisition through business
combinutions (hote 31)

Additions
Disposuls
Bulance at 30 June 2008

Additions

Acquisition through business
combinutions (hote 31)

Disposuls
Bulance at 30 June 2009

Accumulated Depreciation
Bulunce at 1 July 2007
Disposuls

Deypreciution Expense
Bulunce ut 30 June 2008

Disposals
Depreciution Expense
Bulunce at 30 June 2009

Net Book Value
As at 30 June 2008
As at 30 June 2009

Leased Assets Motor Vehicles

$

214,811

121,318

336,129

478,882

815,011

(22,662)

(40,249)
62,911)

Leased Assets

$

(78.199)
(141,110)

273.218
673,901

$

237.446

14,545
(22,000)
229,991

47,804

(62,544)
215,251

(102,187)
10,404
(42,348)
(134,131)

Motor Vehicles

$
49,303
(33.163)
(117.991)

95,860
97.260
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Consolidated

Office
Equipment

$

117,904

35,242

163,146

28,856

(42,703)
139,299

(70.383)
(23,525)
(93,908)

Consolidated

Office
Equipment

$

42,282
(25.511)
77.137)

59,238
62,162
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Plant &
Equipment bl
$ $
1,977,080 2,547,241
510,280 510,280
105,681 276,786
(60,144) (82,144)
2,532,897 3,252,163
1,213,219 1,768,761
90,000 90,000
(581,329) (686,576)
3,254,787 4,424,348
(1,189.,736) (1,384,968)
23,192 33.596
(273,810) (379,932)
(1,440,354) (1,731,304)
Plant &
Equipment Total
$ $
388,958 480,543
(286,669) (423,542)
(1,338,065) (1,674.,303)
1,092,543 1,620,859
1,916,722 2,750,045
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18. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Gross Carrying Amount
Bulance at 1 July 2007
Additions

Disposuls

Bulunce at 30 June 2008

Additions

Acquisition through business
combinution

Transfer to Subsidiaries
Disposuls
Bulance ut 30 June 2009

Accumulated Depreciation
Bulance ut 1 July 2007
Disposuls

Depreciution Expense
Bulunce ut 30 June 2008

Transfer to subsidiaries
Disposuls

Depreciution Expense
Bulunce ut 30 June 2009

Net Book Value
As at 30 June 2008
As at 30 June 2009

Leased Assets Motor Vehicles

$

193,711
121,318

315,029

234,153

549,182

(17.427)
(36.658)
(54.079)

(57,054)
(111,133)

260,950
438,049

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade puyubles (i)

Goods und services tux payuble

Sundry puydbles and uccrued expenses

Amounts puyuble to subsidiuries

$

48,274
(7,000)
41,274

(30,364)

10,910

(27.895)
7,000
(6.460)
(27,355)

21,637

(4,354)
(10,072)

13,918
838

LU L
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Company

Office
Equipment

$

32,096
2,172

34,268

3,470

(4,697)
33,041

(16,483)
5511
(21,994)

4,697
(5.206)
(22,503)

12,274
10,538

Consolidated

2009
$
945,307
28,733
206,919

1,180,959

2008
$
1.337.723
14,174
213,084

1,564,981
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Equipment bt
$ $
2,189,870 2,463,951
103,506 226,996
(60,144) (67,144)
2,233,232 2,623,803
1,207,655 1,445,278
- (30,364)
(490.,886) (495,583)
3,040,001 3,633,134
(1,040,768) (1,102,567)
23,192 30,192
(233,316) (281,945)
(1,250.,892) (1,354,320)
- 21,637
305,041 309,738
(252,210) (318,824)
(1,198,061) (1,341,769)
982,340 1,269,482
1,841,940 2,291,365
Company
2009 2008
$ $
342,799 481,004
5,110 (10,290)
110,380 120,628
900,889 -
1,359,178 591,342

(i) The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in
place to ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report



17000 "% o..:..o'..o e°0"e"e%"%

20. PROVISIONS
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Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
Current
- Employee Benefits 140,762 140,487 140,762 140,487
- Warranty 20,000 52,507 - -
160,762 192,994 140,762 140,487
Non-current
- Employee Benefits 39,264 - 39,264 -
Consolidated Warranty 2009 Warranty 2008
$ $
Openiny bulunce ut 1 July 52,507 50,000
Additiondl provisions 203,761 45,000
Amounts used (236,268) (42.,493)
Bulunce at 30 June 20,000 52,507
Company
Opening bualunce at 1 July - 10,000
Additionul provisions - -
Amounts used - (10,000)

Bulance at 30 June

Provision for warranty is mude for the estimuted wuarrunty claims in respect of products sold which are still under
wdarrunty at bulance date. Manugement estimate the provision bused on historical warranty claim information and
any recent frends that may sugyest future claims may differ from historical amounts.

21. BORROWINGS

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Note $ $ $ $

Unsecured - at amortised cost
Current
Vendor Finunce (i) 228,460 - 228,460 -
Secured - at amortised cost
Current
Finance leuse liubilities (ii) 25 174,678 87,635 123,424 74,245
Other loun (i) 440,975 - 440,975 -
Secured - at amortised cost 844,113 87.635 792,859 74,245
Non-current
Finunce leuse liubilities (i) 25 573,311 282,872 381,739 275,621

1,417,424 370,507 1,174,598 349,766

Summary of borrowing arrangements:

() Balance of a vendor loan remaining at balance date under an arrangement put in place to purchase the Budget
Tyres business (refer note 31 Acquisition of Businesses)

(if) Secured by the assets leased.

(iii) Loan secured by trade receivables to a finance company to provide working capital.
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22. ISSUED CAPITAL

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
2&12520 (2008: 77,587 ,963) fully puid ordinury 7532552 6,375,692 7,532,552 6,375,692
Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
Number Number $ $
At the beginning of the financial year 77,687,963 71,962,653 6,375,692 5,706,546
Share transuctions:
- 29 April 2008 (i) - 100,000 - -
- 1 Jun 2008 (ii) - 1,379.310 - 200,000
- 28 Muy 2008 (iii) - 5,000,000 - 500,000
- 24 June 2008 (iv) - (854,000) - (854)
- 5 May 2009 (v) 1,735,941 - 112,836 -
- 8 Muy 2009 (vi) 15,384,616 - 1,000,000 -
- 30 June 2009 (vii) (998,000) - (998) -
Transuction costs: - - (26,978) (30.,000)
Transfer from shure-bused puyments reserve for
shures issued to employees that were releused - - 72,000 -
from escrow (note 23)
Bulunce ut end of finunciul yeur 93,710,520 77,587,963 7,532,652 6,375,692

(i) On 29 April 2008 the Company issued 100,000 ordinary shares under its Employee Share Plan.

(if) On 29 April 2008 the Company issued 1,379,310 ordinary shares as consideration for the remaining 50% of the issued
capital of Duskview Pty Ltd.

(i) On 28 May 2008 the Company issued 5,000,000 ordinary shares through a placement at 10 cents per share.

(iv)  On 24 June 2008 the Company bought back 854,000 shares under its Employee Share Plan.

(V) On 5 May 2009 the Company issued 1,735,941 ordinary shares applied for by shareholders under a 1 for 2 non-
renounceable rights issue.

(vi)  On 8 May 2009 the Company issued 15,384,616 ordinary shares to the underwriters of the 1 for 2 non-renounceable
rights issue.

(vii)  On 30 June 2009 the Company bought back 998,000 shares under its Employee Share Plan.

Chunyes to the then Corporations Law ubolished the authorised cupital and pur value concept in relation to share
cupital from 1 July 1998. Therefore, the compuny does hot have d limited umount of authorised cupitul und issued
shures do hot have a pur vadlue. Fully puid ordihdry shares curry one vote per shure und curry the right to dividends.

23. RESERVES

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008

Equity-Settled Employee Benefits Reserve 5 $ $ $
Bulunce ut beyinning of finunciul year 280,091 91,056 280,091 91,056
Share-bused puyment 12,886 189,035 12,886 189,035
Transfer to share cupital (72,000) - (72,000) -
Vulue of shure options cuncelled prior to vesting

of the share option (30,918) - (30,918) -
Bulunce ut end of finunciul yeur 190,059 280,091 190,059 280,091
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23. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
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The equity-settled employee benefits reserve drises on the yrunt of share options fo employees under the Employee
Share Option Plun und shares yranted to employees und directors which ure held under escrow. Amounts ure
fransferred out of the reserve und into issued cupitul when the options dre exercised und shares come out of
escrow. Further information about share bused payments mude under the plun are shown in hote 32 to the financial

stutements.

24. ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Accumulated Losses
Bulance ut beyinning of finunciul yeur

Loss for the year attributable to members of the
parent entity

Bulance ut end of finuncial year

25. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

Commitments for minimum leuse puyments in
relation to hon-cuncelluble operuting leuses ure
as follows:

Within one year

Luter thun one yeur but not five yeurs
Commitments hot recoynised in the financiul
statements

Leasing arrangements

Operuting leuses relate to rent of building with leuse

Consolidated Company
2009 2008 2009 2008
$ $ $ $
(3,351,551) (2,620,283) (3.706,302) (3.033,906)
(2,201,388) (731,268) (3.165,504) (672,396)
(56,552,939) (3.351,651) (6.871,806) (3,706,302)
421,978 150,000 407,178 160,000
450,519 - 450,519 -
872,497 150,000 857,697 150,000

terms of 3 to 5 yeurs, with un option to extend for u further 3

yeurs. All operuting leuse contracts contuin market review clauses in the event that the Group/Compuny exercises its
option to renew. The Group does hot have un option to purchase the leased asset ut the expiry of the leuse period.

Financing Leases

Commitments in relation to finunce leuses ure puyuble us follows:

Within one yeur

Later thun one yeur but not luter thun five years
Later thun five yeurs

Minimum leuse puyments

Less future finunce charyges

Recoyhised us u liubility

Representing leuse liubilities

Current (note 21)

Non-current (note 21)

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

234,403 117,722 160,022 101,349
650,356 242,278 429,722 233,024

- 85,730 - 85,734

884,759 445,730 589,744 420,107
(136,770) (75,223) (84,581) (70,341)
747,989 370,507 505,163 349,766
174,678 87,635 123,424 74,245
573.311 282,872 381,739 275,521
747,989 370,507 505,163 349,766

The directors are of the opinion that there dare ho contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2009.
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The econhomic entity operates predominantly in one business segment beiny the munufucture of recycled rubber and
its ussociuted products in Australia only.

28.

a)

b)

c)

______
42

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Loss after Income Tax

Consolidated

2009
$

Loss ufter income tax (2,213.287)
Non-cush flows in profit:

Interest received (27.868)
Depreciution und umortisution 431,066
Amortisution of yovernment grunt (4.834)
Allowunce for doubftful debts -
Impuirment of investments in subsidiaries -
Loss / (guin) on disposul of fixed ussets 202,533
Employee share plan (18,032)
(Increuse)/decreuse in tfrude und term receivubles 550,592
(Increuse)/decreuse in inventories (104,210)
(Increuse)/decreuse in other operuting ussets 56,685
Increuse/(decreuse) in trude puyubles und uccruuls (280,280)
Increuse/(decreuse) in provisions 14,533
Cuashflow from operations (1,393,102)

Non Cash Financing & Investing Activities

2008
$
(717.372)

(59.603)
389,964

(12.197)
189,035
(137.,217)
91.461
(29,908)
(482,054)
(95.710)
(863,601)

Company
2009 2008
$ $

(3,165,504) (672.,396)
(1,638) (623)
318,824 281,945
(4,834) -
2,721,061 -
139,620 -
182,345 (48.,856)
(18,032) 189,035
77.100 (245,429)
(90,607) (18,312)
91,500 (41,833)
(133,050) (278.681)
39,539 (10,000)
156,324 (845,150)

Under a Share Sale Agreement dated 1 January 2008, the vendors of Duskview Pty Ltd were issued 1,379,310 Ordinary
Fully Paid shares in Reclaim Industries Limited at a price of 14.5 cents per share, as part consideration for the sale of
the remaining 50% of the issued capital of Duskview Pty Ltd. Refer to note 31 for additional information.
During the current financial year the Group acquired $478,882 (2008: $121,318) of equipment under a finance lease.
This acquisition will be reflected in the cash flow statement over the term of the finance lease via lease repayments.

Financing Facilities

Secured invoice discounting fucility:

. umount used 440,975

. umount unused 1,059,025
1,500,000

Secured usset finunce fucility:

. amount used -

. umount unused 250,000

250,000

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Other than us mentioned below, there have not been any matters or circumstunces occurring subsequent to the end
of the finunciul year that has significuntly affected, or may sighificuntly affect, the operations of the consoliduted
entity, the results of those operutions, or the stute of uffuirs of the of the consoliduted entity in future financial yeuars.
o On 28 September 2009 the Company signed an agreement to acquire the inventory and the majority of the plant

and equipment associated with the former Renaza tyre processing facility in New South Wales for a purchase price of

$621,000.

d&B\!O@QB..Q.
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The Company will also enter into a 3 year lease agreement on the premises where the equipment is currently located

in Fairfield NSW.

This transaction will result in the Company securing a high quality car tyre processing facility on the east coast capable
of producing 2,400 tonnes of rubber per annum. The site will also be able to produce coloured rubber product.
This will make the Company the only Australian company with the capacity to produce crumbed rubber in three states
and coloured rubber in two states within Australia.
The Company expects to commence operation from the Fairfield site in early October 2009.
. During August 2009 the Company has successfully negotiated an additional finance facility which is yet to be drawn

down. The facility is a frade debtors factoring facility which enables the Company to drawdown up to 80% of the frade
debtors up to an additional amount of $400,000. The debtor factoring facility is initially for a twelve month period and

then continues until either party gives notice (3 months) to terminate the facility.

Details of the percentage of ordinary shares held in subsidiaries are disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

Details of key management personnel compensation are disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.

Fully paid ordinary shares issued by Reclaim Industries Limited to key management personnel are as follows:

Rights issued

9,230,769 (i)
6,153,847 ()

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a)  Equity interests in related parties

b) Key management personnel compensation

c) Key management personnel equity holdings
Balance at
1 July 2008

2009 Number

DIRECTORS

Ms J King 15,565,445

Mr J Crosby 7,729,961

Mr N Muckenzie -

Ms E Lyons 100,000

Mr C Forrester 1,580,797

Mr M Bickford-Smith -

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONAL

Mr S Morgun -

Mr P Derhum -

Mr | Robinson -

Mr P Owens 200,000

Mr R Timms -

Net other
changes

Number

165,000
(100,000 (ii)
(1.,580,797) (i)

344,827
(200,000)

Balance at
30 June 2009

Number

24,796,214
14,048,808

344,827

Balance held
Nominally

Number

() Full amount of these issues are as a result of shares issued under the underwriting agreement associated with the rights

issue 5 May 2009.
(if)

Director resigned during the year resulting in a nil closing balance.
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

2008
DIRECTORS

Ms J King

Mr J Crosby

Mr C Forrester
Ms E Lyohs

Mr N Mackenzie
Mr R Timms

Mr L Atkins

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONAL
Mr C Battel

Mr P Owehs

Mr J Lany

Balance at
1 July 2007

Number

1,529,047
100,000

310,000
200,000
100,000

Net other Balance at Balance held

changes 30 June 2008 Nominally
Number Number Number

15,565,445 15,565,445 -

7,729,961 7,729,961 -

51,750 1,680,797 -

100,000 -

(310,000) - -

- 200,000 -

(100,000) - -

Options issued by Recluim Industries Limited to key manugement personnel ure us follows:

Balance

1 July

2008
2009 Number
DIRECTORS
Ms J King -
Mr J Crosby -
Mr N Muckenzie -
Ms E Lyons 100,000
Mr C Forrester 2,340,000
Mr M Bickford- B
Smith
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONAL
Mr S Morgun -
Mr P Derhum -
Mr | Robinson -
Mr P Owens 200,000
Mr R Timms -

______
44

Granted as

compensation

Number

Cancelled Balance

during the 30 June
year 2009
Number Number
- 100,000
1,170,000 1,170,000
- 200,000

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report

Balance
vested at
30 June
2009

Number

100,000
,170,000

200,000

Vested and
exercisable

Number

p—

100.000

,170,000

200,000

Vested
but not
exercisable

Number

Options
vested
during

year

Number
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

BaloNnce  Gianjeq g5 Goncolled  Balance (SO vegeaana  Yered  (oyeo
2007 compensation year 2008 302582e exercisable e B d;glgrg

2008 Number Number Number  Number  Number Number Number  Number
DIRECTORS = =
Ms J King - - - - - - - -
Mr J Crosby - - - - - - - -
Mr C Forrester 2,340,000 - 2,340,000 2,340,000 2,340,000
Ms E Lyons 100,000 - - 100,000 100,000 100,000 - -
Mr N Mackenzie
Mr R Timms - - - - - - - -
Mr L Atkins - 1,260,000 - 1,260,000 1,260,000 1,260,000 - -
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONAL
Mr C Buttel - - - - - - - -
Mr P Owens 200,000 - - 200,000 200,000 200,000 - -

(d) Transactions with Related Parties
(i) Rent paid by the Group and company fo Lloyd Price Carnavon Pty Ltd (an entity associated with Ms J King) on normal
terms and conditions $178,801 (2008: $165,000)

(i) Rent paid by the Group to A Management Pty Ltd (an entity associated with Mr J Crosby) on normal terms and
conditions $48,950 (2008: nil)

(iii) Consulting services paid by the Group to Neil MacKenzie a director of a subsidiary on normal business conditions for
$5,500 (2008: nil)

(iv)Ms J King and Mr J Crosby underwrote the rights issue occurring 5 May 2009 to the value of $1 million. Due fo the
shortfall in the rights issue 9,230,769 shares valued at $600,000 were issued to Ms J King and 6,153,847 shares valued
at $400,000 were issued to Mr J Crosby.

(e) Transactions with Related Parties
The ultimate parent entity in the wholly-owned Group is Reclaim Industries Limited. Amounts receivable from and payable
to the controlled entities are disclosed in note 10 and 19 respectively.

During the financial year Reclaim Industries Limited provided to subsidiaries:

* Accounting and administrative services at no cost

* The advancement of inferest free advances

* Sold goods at cost to controlled entities (note 3)

* Sold plant and equipment at its written down value (note 18)

Transfer of tax losses have been fransferred to Reclaim Industries Limited for no consideration.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuaul report —



o ® & & & & @ 9

. " 0 " @

U T T R TT T T T S R I R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. ACQUISITION OF BUSINESSES

On 27 Februury 2009 Recluim, purchused the tyre collection business of Budyet Tyres in South Australia for u total

considerution of $330,000 to be puid over 13 monthly instulments of $25,385 euch.
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Detuils of the fuir vulue of the net ussets ucyuired und the considerution puid ure set out below:

Fair Value
Adjustment

$ $
Plunt und eyuipment ucyuired 90,000 -

Book Value

Cost of ucquisition

Fuir value of ussets ucquired
Goodwill

Net cash flow on acquisition
Totdl purchuse consideraution
Less: Vendor Finunce

Considerution puid in cush

On 1 Junuary 2008 Recluim purchused 50% of the issued cupital of Duskview Pty Ltd for a consideration of $250,000
resulting in Duskview Pty Ltd becominy u wholly ownhed subsidiury. Previously Recluim uccounted for its investment in

Duskview Pty Ltd under the equity uccounting method.

Fair Value

$
90,000

$
330,000
(90.000)
240,000

330,000
(330,000)

Detdils of the fuir value of the net ussets ucquired und the considerution puid are set out below:

Fair Value

Book Value Adjustment
$ $
Plant and equipment 510,280 -
Trade Debtors 167,217 -
Trude creditors (113,058) -
Leuse Liubilities (135,174) -
Provisions (18.816) -
Bank (2,619 -
Louns (56,565) -
Other (796) -
Net ussets ucquired 350,469 -

Cost of ucquisition
- originul ucyuisition

- conftrolling interest

Fair value of net ussets ucquired

Less: Adjustment for previous held interest

Goodwill

Net cash flow on acquisition

Totul purchase consideration

Less: Previously held interest (ucquired in previous period)
Less: Amount puid in shares

Cuash outflow on ucquisition

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report

Fair Value

$
510,280
167,217
(113.058)
(135,174)
(18.816)
(2,619
(56,565)
(796)
350,469

$
226,957
250,000
476,957
350,469
(16,631)
333,838
143.119

476,957
(226,957)
(200,000)

50,000
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32. SHARE OPTION PLANS AND EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

Share Options

The Group hus un owhership-bused compensation plan for executives und employees. In accordunce with the
provisions of the Employee Share Option Plan, us upproved by shareholders at an annudl general meeting, directors
muy issue options to purchuse shares in the Compuny to executives und employees ut un issue price determined by
the market price of ordinary shares ut the time the option is grunted. No directors purticipute in the Employee Shure

Option Plan.

In accordunce with the ferms of the Employee Share Option Plun, options vest ut yrunt dute und muy be exercised

at uny time from the dute of their issue to the dute of their
Shure options are not listed, carry ho rights to dividends an

The followiny shaure bused puyment arrangements were in

expiry.
d ho voting rights.

existence during the finunciul yeur;
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Options Number Grant Date Expiry Date Exercise Price Fg::ﬁ';gtgf
Employee Share Option

Plan

April 2007 200,000 17/04/2007 30/06/2010 0.20 0.0473
Directors Options

December 2006 100,000 29/12/2006 30/06/2010 0.20 0.0350
December 2007 1,200,000 10/12/2007 30/06/2010 0.20 0.0407
December 2007 1,200,000 10/12/2007 30/06/2011 0.30 0.0362
December 2007 1,200,000 10/12/2007 30/06/2011 0.40 0.0266

The weighted uveruyge of fuir vulue of options yrunted during the year is nil (2008: $0.0345) per option. Options were

vulued using the Bluck-Scholes model using the following inputs:

Option Series

December 2007 December 2007 December 2007
Grunt dute shure price 0.14 0.14 0.14
Exercise price 0.20 0.30 0.40
Cudlculuted volutility 16.4% 16.4% 16.4%
Option expiry 30 June 2010 30 June 2011 30 June 2011
Risk free interest rute 6.58% 6.51% 6.51%

The following reconciles the outstunding share options grunted under the Plun ut the beyihning und end of the

finunciul yeur:

Number of
options
Balunce at beyinning of financial year 3,900,000
Grunted during the finunciul yeur -
Exercised during the finuncial year -
Lapsed during the financial yeur -
Cuancelled during the financial yeur (1,170,000)
Bulance ut the end of finuncial year (i) 2,730,000

(i) Options outstanding at the end of the financial year

The shure options outstunding ut the end of the finunciul yeur had un uveruge exercise price of $0.26 (2008: $0.292)

und g weighted average remuaining contractudl life of 529

2009
Weighted average

2008

exercise price Number of
options
$
0.292 7,500,000
0.366 (3.600,000)
0.260 3,900,000

days (2008: 955 duys).

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnudl report

Weighted average
exercise price

$
0.296

0.30
0.292

47
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"NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. SHARE OPTION PLANS AND EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Employee Share Scheme

A scheme under which shares muy be issued fo employees for no cush consideration wus upproved by shareholders
ut the 2006 unnuul generdl meeting. All Australiun resident employees (excluding directors) are eligible to purticipute
in the scheme. Employees may elect not to purticipute in the scheme.

The invitution to purticipute, the humber of shares und the issue price of the shures ure at the full discretion of the
bourd us detuiled under the Reclaim Industries Employee Share Plun Rules.

Under the Employee Share Scheme shares were issued to key munagement personnel on 17 April 2007 in two tranches
und are subject to continuity of service requirements through to 30 June 2009 und to continuity of service reyuirements
through to 30 June 2011. The shares are held in escrow until the continuity of service requirement is met.

Euch purticipunt wus issued with shares at a value of 12 cents per share on 17 April 2007.

Number of shares

2009 2008
Bulunce ut beyinning of finunciul year 1,828,000 2,215,000
Releused from escrow (320,000) -
Cuncelled during the financial yeur (998.000) (387.000)
Bulunce ut the end of financiual year 510,000 1,828,000

33. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In the current yeuar, the Group hus udopted ull of the hew und revised Stundards and Inferpretations issued by the
Australian Accounting Stundurds Bourd (the AASB) thut ure relevant to its operations und effective for the current
unhudul reporting period.

Various Stundards und Inferpretutions were on issue but were not yet effective ut the dute of authorisution of the
financial report. The issue of these Standurds und Interpretations does hot uffect the Group’s present policies und
operutions. The directors unticipute thut the adoption of these Staundards und Interpretations in future periods will
not muteridlly affect the amounts recoynised in the finunciul stautements of the Group und the Compuny but muy
chunge the disclosure presently made in the financial statements of the Group or the Compuany.

34. COMPANY DETAILS
The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is:

67 Miguel Roud
Bibru Luke WA 6163

DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION

The directors declure thut:
(@) Inthe directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as
and when they become due and payable;

(b) In the directors’ opinion, the financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position and
performance of the Company and consolidated entity; and

(c)  The directors have been given the declaration required by Section 295A of the Corporation Act 2001.

Sighed in uccordunce with u resolution of the directors mude pursuunt fo Section 295(5) of the Corporutions Act 2001.

r John Crésby
Managing Director

30™ September 2009

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

]
Deloilte Touche Tohmalsu
& ABN 74 490 121 060
11 Waymouth Slreet
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 1969
Adelaide SA 5001 Australia

DX: 664

Tel: +61 (0) 8 8407 7000
Fax: +61 (0) 8 8407 7001
www.delcille.com.au

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Reclaim Industries Limited

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Reclaim Industries Limited which comprises the
balance sheet as at 30 June 2009 and the income statement, cash flow statement and statement of recognised
income and expense for the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other
explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the
entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year as set out on pages 16 to
48,

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations
and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1 the directors also state, in
accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that compliance
with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards ensures that the financial
report, comprising the financial statements and notes, complies with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

Auditor's Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Liabilty limded by a scheme approved under Professional Slandards Legislalion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001.

Auditor’s Opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Reclaim Industries Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30
June 2009 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 200/; and

(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note

Material Uncertainty Regarding Continuation as a Going Concern

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report which indicates that for
the year ended 30 June 2009 the consolidated entity and the company incurred a net loss of $2,213,287 and
$3,165,504 respectively and used net cash in / (provided by) operating activities of $1,393,102 and
(8$156,324) respectively. These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 1, indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the consolidated entity’s and the
company’s ability to continue as going concerns and whether they will realise their assets and extinguish
their liabilities in the normal course of business and at the amounts stated in the financial report.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 8 to 14 of the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2009. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of
the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Reclaim Industries Limited for the year ended 30 June 2009,
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

D E TOUCHE TOHMATSU
e«

J ndel

Partner

Chartered Accountants
Adelaide, 30 September 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Bourd of Directors of Reclaim Industries Limited (Reclaim or Company) is responhsible for the corporate governance

of the econhomic entity. The Bourd guides und monitors the business and uffairs of Recluim on behdalf of the shareholders
by whom they ure elected und to whom they ure uccountuble.

In August 2007 the ASX Corporute Goverhunce Council (the Council) releused u revised edition of the Corporute
Goverhunce Principle und Recommendations. This revised edition contains 8 principles for good corporate
ygovernunce. The Council recoynised that hot ull recommendutions ure uppropriute for ull compunies und compunies
should only udopt those recommendutions thut ure suituble in euch individual cuse.

During the year ended 30 Junhe 2009, the Compuny adopted most of the corporate governance initiatives, however
due to the current size, structure and activities of the Company, the Board resolved hot to adopt some of the Council’s
recommendutions ut that stfuge. The Bourd continues to review this position us the Compuny ygrows, to determine
whether und ut whut point it is uppropriate to udopt these recommendations.

The ASX Listing Rule 4.10.3 reyuires that the Compuny disclose the extent to which it hus followed best practice
recommendutions, identify which recommendutions have not been followed, und the reuson for hot udopting the
recommendations.

1. FOUNDATIONS FOR MANAGEMENT AND OVERSIGHT

The Compuny hus formulised and disclosed the roles und responsibilities of the bourd aund those deleguted to senior
munhuygement, in its Bourd Charter.

The responsibilities of the Bourd include determining und monitoring the objectives und strateyic direction of Recluim,
monitoring the performunce of the Compuny und its senior executives, upproving business pluns und budyets, und
developiny und ensuring udherence to Compuny policies. The Bourd is ulso responsible for compliaunce with the
codes of conduct, overseeiny risk munagement und internal controls, and the ussessment, appointment and removal
of the Chief Executive Officer, Compuny Secretury und other senior executives.

The senior munuygement are responsible for the efficient und effective operaution of the Compuny in uccordunce with
the objectives, strateyies und policies determined by the Bourd.

2. STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE

The composition of the Bourd shull be determined in uccordunce with the following principles und guidelines:

(@)  the Board shall comprise at least three Directors, increasing where additional expertise is considered desirable in
certain areas;

(b)  the Board should not comprise a majority of executive Directors; and

(c)  Directors should bring characteristics, which allow a mix of qualifications, skills and experience both nationally and
internationally.

The tferms und conditions of the uppointment und retirement of Directors will be set out in a lefter of appointment which
covers remuneration, expectutions, terms, the procedures for dedling with conflicts of interest and the avdilability of
independent professional udvice.

The composition of the Bourd is reviewed on un ohgoiny busis to ensure that the Bourd hus un appropriute bulance
of experience und expertise.

Board is responhsible for developing the culture of the orgunisation, including the performunce focus und the legal,
ethicul und morul conduct, to preserve und enhance Recluim’s reputation in the recycling industry, business yenerally
und the brouder community.

The Directors in office ut the dute of this Annudl Report ure:

Name and Qualification Date of Appointment

Ms Jennifer King Non-Executive Chdairperson Appointed s honh-executive
Chudirperson on 22 Junuury 2008.

Mr John Crosby Maunaging Director Appointed us hon-executive director
11 April 2008. Appointed us Managiny
Director 1 May 2008.

Mr Neil Mackenzie Independent Non-Executive Director Appointed us hon-executive director

11 April 2008.
Detdils on the relevunt skills und experience, und term of office of euch of the directors are set out in the Director’s
Report.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report —
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

2. STRUCTURE THE BOARD TO ADD VALUE (CONTINUED)

The Council recommends thut u Board of Directors should comprise a majority of independent Directors. Reclaim has

udopted the position that, to be considered independent, u director must be u hon-executive, und:

(@)  not be a substantial shareholder of the Company or an officer of, or otherwise associated directly with, a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(b) is not employed, and within the last 3 years, has not been employed in an executive capacity by the Company or
another Group member, or been a director after ceasing to hold any such employment;

(c)  within the last 3 years, not have not been a principal of a material professional adviser or a material consultant to the
Company or another Group member, or an employee materially associated with the service provider;

(d)  not be a material supplier or customer of the Company or other Group member, or an officer of or otherwise
associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or customer; or

(e)  have no material contractual relationship with the Company or another Group member other than as a director of the
Company.

Muteridlity for these purposes is determined on both guuntitative and qudlitutive buses. An umount of over 10%
of the uppropriute buse umount is considered to be yuuntitutively material for these purposes, whilst un amount
of less thun 5% is considered to be yuuntitatively immaterial. Quulitative factors considered include the nature of
the reldtionship und its strutegic importunce, the competitive lundscupe, the contractual urrangements, und other
fuctors indicuting the ubility of the director o exercise unfettered und independent judyement,

Reclauim’s Bourd composition does hot follow the ASX recommenddtions, in that a majority of directors are not
independent due to the smuall humber of directors currently on the board. Whilst the Company intfends to progressively
increuse the independence of its directors us it grows over time, compliance with the best practice recommendutions
in this ureu is nhot considered u current imperautive, due to the skill set of existing directors und senior executives, und
the cost of uppointing additionul directors.

The Council recommends that compunies estublish a Nomination Committee to ussess the necessury competencies
of Bourd members, review Bourd succession plans, evuluate Bourd performunce, und muke recommendutions for
the uppointment und removul of Bourd members. Having regurd to the Compuny’s size und composition of the
bourd, the Bourd considers that this role is more efficiently undertaken within the auspices of the full bourd. A churter
eqyuivulent fo u Nominution Committee Churter hus been udopted o provide yuidunce to the Bourd in its oversight
of this function.

3. PROMOTE ETHICAL AND RESPONSIBLE DECISION MAKING

The Compuny hus developed u Code of Conduct which requires that dll employees ure awdare of, und comply with,
leyislution und policies upplicuble to their position. The Code ulso reyuires employees to uvoid or ensure proper
munuygement of conflicts of interest, to hot use confidentiul information for personul yuin, und to yenerdlly operute
in u fuir, honhest und open munner.

In uccordunce with the Council’s recommendutions Recluim hus estublished u share trading policy. Directors, senior
maunhuyers, employees und reluted purties (beiny persons connected with them who ure likely to be influenced by the
directors/employees in their decision muking) shall not trude in the Compuny’s securities nor pluce themselves under
suspicion of trading in the Compuny’s securities while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information.

4. SAFEGUARD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Council’s recommendution is that compunies estublish an Audit Committee. A further recommendution is that
the committee comprises of ut leust three members, who ure only hon-executive directors, with g mdjority beiny
independent, und being chuaired by un independent chuirmun who is hot dlso chairmun of the bourd. However,
due to the smull size and structure of the Bourd, it was decided that ho udditional benefits or efficiencies would be
uchieved by estublishing u sepurute Audit Committee. Accordingly, the full Bourd curried out the duties otherwise
undertaken by an Audit Committee. A charter equivalent fo un Audit Committee Chuarter has been adopted to
provide guidunce to the Board in its oversight of this function.

During the yeur ended 30 June 2009, the Compuny hud an informual risk oversight and munagement policy and
internal compliunce und control systems. Recluim hus continued the process of formulising the policy und systems,
taking into account the size of the Compuny and the hature of its activities. This formalisation process hus not yet
been completed.

_ Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report

52




L L e 00000000 L R LR L ] e 0 9000006000000
......I...................................

: . eewamna.iunlnn..
O --':-__']}_')JnImummllullIIII.IIII.l....I..lll.l...lll.l....l..l

.il_‘ﬂ_-ﬂ‘»2 L B O R D L R N O L D R O O O L D O O O O O N )
s 8 &

P @ % B & ° 8 8 0 B 0 @

5. MAKE TIMELY AND BALANCED DISCLOSURE

The Compuny hus established procedures to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements. The Bourd
is uware of the continuous disclosure requirements und any such matters ure discussed ut the monthly Bourd meeting.

The Compuny Secretary is respohsible for communications with the ASX including ehsuring compliunce with the
contfinuous disclosure requirements.

Anhouncements mude to the ASX dre dlso published on the Compuny’s website.

6. SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

Recluim endeuvours to provide shareholders with important information on the Company in a fimely und efficient
manner. The Compuny hus confinued fo increuse und improve the informution avuiluble to shaureholders on ifs
website which has recently been redesigned.

Shareholders ure informed of the uctivities of the Compuny throuyh its Quurterly Report, Ahnuul Report, und other
murket disclosures. Shareholders ure ulso encouruyged to uttend Recluim’s Annuul Generul Meeting. The Compuny’s
auditor is reyuired o uttend its Anhuul Generul Meeting.

The Compuny hus udopted u shureholder communicuations policy to formualise the ubove practices.

7. RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

The Bourd hus estublished a policy in relution to risk manugement and oversight. This risk management policy is
designhed to ensure thut strateyic, operutional, legul, business und financidl risks ure identified, ussessed, uddressed
aund monitored to ussist the economic entity to achieve its business objectives.

During the yeur ended 30 June 2009, the Compuny hud an informal risk oversight and munagement policy and
internal compliunce and control systems. Recluim hus continued the process of formulising the policy und systems,
taking into uccount the size of the Compuny und the huture of its uctivities. The bourd recognises its responsibility for
identifying ureus of sighificunt business risk und ensuring thut adeqguaute meusures are in pluce for munuging these
risks.

The Executive Director und Chief Finunciul Officer provide u semi annuul written statement to the Bourd confirming

that:

(@)  the statement provided by the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer to the Board regarding the Company’s
financial condition and operational results is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance
and control which implements the policies adopted by the Board; and

(b)  the Company’s risk management and internal compliance and control system is operating efficiently and effectively in
all material respects.

8. REMUNERATE FAIRLY AND RESPONSIBLY

The bourd hus estublished a remunerution policy. The performunce of the Bourd und key executives is to be reviewed
aguinst both yuunftitative and gudlitative indicators, which are dlighed with the financial and hon-financial objectives
of Recluim.

The Councils recommendution is thut compunies estublish u Remunerution Committee. Having regurd to the
Compuny’s size und composition of the Bourd, the Bourd considers that this role is more efficiently undertaken within
the auspices of the full Bourd. A charter eyuivalent to an Remuneration Committee Charter has been adopted to
provide guidaunce to the Board in ifs oversight of this function.

Where the Compuny hus u requirement for additionul services within the skill set of hon-executive directors, und it is
efficient und effective to do so, the Bourd muy seek conhsulting services from the hon-executive Directors ut u maurket
rate approved by the Bourd.

The remuneraution of executive directors und other senior executives is reviewed unnudlly by the Bourd, havihg regyurd
to personul und corporute performunce on u short term und lonhy term busis, und to relative industry remunerution
levels. Where uppropriute, the Bourd will seek independent udvice to ensure uppropriate remunerution levels ure in
pluce.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors is determined by the Board within the muximum umount upproved by
shaureholders of $250,000 per unnum. Non-executive directors ure hot entitled to retirement benefits other than stututory
superunnuution, und do not purticipute in share or bonus schemes tuilored for executives und other employees, but
may receive dllocutions of incentive shares and options, subject to shareholder upproval. The Compuny does hot
currently operate uny schemes which provide for retirement benefits for non-executive directors.

Further detdils on directors” und executives’ remuneration und directors” yudlifications ure set out in the Directors’ Report.

Recluim Industries Limited 2009 unnuul report —

53



(A 0%5%"0% 0% "0 " e s s 0 s "0 0 s "0 0 0 0 s "0 s 0 s "a"
R N R R R R R I X M X I
N N M A
ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additionul informution reyuired by the ASX Limited Listing Rules not disclosed elsewhere in this Anhuul Report is set
out below.
1. SHAREHOLDINGS
The issued cupitul of the Compuny us ut 30 September 2009 is 93,710,520 ordinury fully puid shares. All issued ordinary
fully puid shares curry one vote per shure. There ure ho listed options. The number of ordinury shures subject to
voluntary escrow is 854,828 (344,828 ordinary shares escrowed until 31 December 2009, 510,000 ordinury shares
escrowed until 30 June 2011).
Ordinary Shares
Shares Range Holders Units %
1-1,000 846 284,914 0.30
1,001-5,000 263 568,178 0.61
5,001-10,000 106 717,620 0.77
10,001-100,000 356 7,714,240 8.23
100,001-9,999.,999 94 84,425,568 90.09
Total 1,665 93,710,520 100.00
Shareholders by Location No. of Holders No. of Shares
Australiun holders 1,656 92,747,446
Overseus holders 109 963,074
Total 1,665 93,710,520
Unmarketable parcels
There were 1,178 holders of less thun a murketuble parcel of ordinury shures.
2. TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2009
Name Number of Shares %
1 Crosby JR + Fisher MJ 7,205,883 7.69
2 Crosby JR + Fisher MJ <Crosby Fum S/F A/C> 6,950,961 7.42
3 King Jennifer Anne 6,529,145 6.97
4 Lloyd Price Carnarvon PL <King S/F A/C> 6,464,370 6.90
5 Knowles Keith 5,009,590 5.35
6 Rexfum Trudiny PL 4,893,971 522
7 Jemuya PL <JH Feutherby S/F A> 4,152,500 4.43
8 Parks Aust Pl 4,119,887 4.40
9 King Timothy John 3,486,469 3.72
10  Bluke Trucey Ann 3,159,677 3.37
11 Sugyers Tom 2,810,000 3.00
12 Lloyd Price Carnarvon PL <EBI Unit A/C> 2,675,080 2.85
13 Coultus Donuld Normun 2,200,000 2.35
14 Gordon Duvid R +LM <Gordon S/F A/C> 2,080,332 2.22
15 Waddell Denis P + FL <DP Waddell S/F A/C> 1,875,000 2.00
16 Tarney Hidys PL 1,250,000 1.33
17 Amzauluk Benjumin 1,148,000 1.23
18  Acumen Eny PL 1,000,000 1.07
19 Fleming Willium + C <Aceriver S/F A/C> 1,000,000 1.07
20 Hendricus PL <Perth Select S'Foo> 1,000,000 1.07
69,010,865 73.64
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3. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2009

Name Number of Shares %
1 Jennifer King, Rexfum Pty Ltd, Lloyd Price Curnuvon Pty Ltd, Junny Pty Ltd, 24,796,214 26.46
Estute of the Lute Tim King, JA King, JA Norris, TJ King, King Superfund
2 Crosby John & Fisher Mary-Jo 14,156,844 15.10
3  Knowles, Keith, Parks Australia Pty Ltd, Edna Knowles, Parks Australia 8,028,050 10.34

Superfund A/C

4. UNQUOTED EQUITY SECURITIES

The unlisted securities of the Compuny as at 30 September 2009 ure 2,730,000 Options. The Options do hot carry u
right to vote ut u generul meeting of Shureholders.

Unlisted Options

Vesting Date Exercise Price No. of Options No. of Holders Expiry Date
31 December 2009 20 cents 200,000 1 30 June 2010
N/A 20 cents 1,300,000 3 30 June 2010
N/A 30 cenfts 810,000 2 30 June 2011
N/A 40 cents 420,000 1 30 June 2011

5. VOTING RIGHTS

In accordunce with the Compuny’s Constitution, on u show of hands every shureholder present in person or by proxy,
attorney or representutive of u shareholder hus one vote und on u poll every shareholder present in person or by
proxy, uttorney, representutive of u shureholder hus in respect of fully puid shares, one vote for every share held. No
cluss of option holder hus u right to vote, however the shures issued upon exercise of options will rank puri pussu with
the then existing fully puid ordinury share.
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67 Miguel Roud

BIBRA LAKE WA 6163
Telephone: (08) 9418 8144
Facsimile: (08) 9418 8174

www.reclaim.com.au

L L LR O S
LR R ® >0 080000
" P B B PO C O BB FEDN
(R N R
" 4 % B " B OO0 R e S
¥« & B ® B & &8 L4 L
« " " 9 . » ® .

- -
L

- =
- % & @
L A






